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I eliminate pests Terminix



TruGreen ChemLawn I make lawns green



I make homes spotless Merry Maids



TruGreen LandCare I care for your grounds



I keep things running A R S / Rescue Rooter



Furniture Medic I restore the beauty



I protect your home American Home Shield



A M S I handle the installation



I clean up the mess ServiceMaster Clean



AmeriSpec I inspect your home



I find solutions ServiceMaster Home Service Center
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Welcome to ServiceMaster, a

company of people who serve.

Every day our people bring order

and balance to our customers’

lives. Every day they restore and

beautify. They roll up their sleeves

and take on the tough jobs and

unrelenting chores. We supply

the tools and training. Our people

supply the diligence and results.

We provide an environment

based on honoring God in all 

we do, helping people develop, 

pursuing excellence and growing

profitably. They bring their own

wil l ingness to serve. We are

proud they are with us. They

make us who we are.



Fellow Shareholders,

Our business is simple. Grass grows. Bugs hatch. Dust settles. Pipes clog. Carpets get

soiled. Furniture gets damaged. It all just happens. And today it’s happening to more and

more homeowners who just can’t keep up with it the way they used to. 

So they turn to us. 70,000 ServiceMaster people make 45 million service calls a year to

help over 10.5 million U.S. households run smoothly. Our skills and services are also

appreciated by tens of thousands of business owners. 

Our revenue mix breaks down to about 70 percent residential and 30 percent commercial.

Either way, it’s the kind of work that doesn’t go away, cannot be replaced by a change in

technology, and is impossible to move offshore. It’s all about people showing up when

they should, where they should, knowing what they need to know, and doing what’s right.

Simple enough.

room to grow

Excitingly simple you might say. Because here we are, the only company that can bring

this many people with this much know-how to this many customers throughout the United

States. Here we are, the owner of the trusted, leading brand names. Here we are, America’s

Home Service Company fortified by a matching set of commercial businesses. 
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Chief Executive Officer’s Letter

Yet, we have plenty of room to grow. And we don’t have to invent a next-generation

product — we don’t have to migrate into businesses we know nothing about. All we have

to do is perform well and consistently all across our Company, and our brands will be the

clear first choice over the local competitors.

Every crowded, fragmented marketplace is an invitation for someone to jump ahead of

the pack and take the maximum allowable market share. We’ve played half that game.

We’ve jumped ahead of the pack, but we have not maximized our share of the market.

Why not? If this business is so simple, and the goal so clear, what’s the holdup?

a focused business 

We have, as a matter of fact, been slowed by a case of divided attention. In addition to

building America’s Home Service Company, we also ran an institutional services business

for the healthcare, education, and industrial markets. The work was similar, but the

customers, market dynamics, and cost structure could not have been more different from

our residential and commercial customers. 

In 2001, we solved this dilemma. We sold our institutional business for approximately

$800 million, leaving us with about $4.6 billion worth of domestic business that all plays

by the same rules. It’s a back again business: Here we are, back again to fertilize the

grass, back again to dust the bookshelves, back again to clean the carpet, back again to

protect against termites. 

Back again — with a unity of purpose, clarity of focus, and a sense of urgency to build on

what we have created. 

a simple plan

We have a plan, and it’s simple too: Replicate, Replicate, Replicate. 

After all, we have leading brands in complementary businesses in growing markets.

We have a common business model across all of our businesses and it works. So let’s

take the best of what we have and do more of it. 

The focal point of our replication efforts is the service center. We have more than 5,400

of them today. In some cases, they are company-owned branches. In other cases, they

are franchises. In all cases, service people come to work there each day, pick up their

assignments, get in their trucks, and go out and serve our customers. 

We can ask certain questions about these service centers. Why do some give better

service? Why do some have higher customer satisfaction? Why do some have more

satisfied employees? We are asking those questions, aggressively and methodically. 

We’re collecting the data and turning our findings into action.

Every answer can pay off 5,400-fold, that is, pay off in every service center, across lines of

business and geographical boundaries.
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But an even greater payoff will come when we can replicate the service centers themselves

—when those 5,400 service centers grow to be 6,000 or 7,000. The key to profitable expansion

will be our ability to systematically and efficiently bring new service centers on line. And we’re

going to grow by increasing both share and demand.

Providing great service by positive employees who meet customer expectations is the

way to generate continuing demand for what we do. Servant leadership is essential to

this effort, and my personal thoughts on the advantage of servant leadership are the

subject of this year’s annual report essay. 

building capabilities

Now that we’re a more coherent set of businesses, we have new opportunities to act

more cohesively as an enterprise. 

Our company-wide adoption of Six Sigma will drive us to find and develop best practices

through process discipline and fact-based decision making. Then we’ll replicate those

best practices across branches, regions, and businesses. Our shareholders, customers,

and employees will all benefit from the improvements. 

Our customer and employee satisfaction initiatives will drive data and measurement

close to the people who are close to the customer, resulting in better execution and faster

adjustments to the market.

Our leadership team is walking the talk by committing our time, dollars, and attention to

these core initiatives. We know that if we supply the blueprint, tools, and training, our people

will supply the diligence and results. 

In 2002 we will concentrate on execution. We will carefully control our expansion, which

in the short and mid term means concentrating on organic growth as well as regional and

local tuck-in acquisitions. 

We will accelerate market development, which means finding new growth through

greater segmentation, new approaches to marketing, and much more emphasis on new

channel development.

Finally, we will take advantage of our collective knowledge and efficiencies by acting in

affiliation by upgrading our approach to purchasing, fleet management, support services,

and systems. 

one step at a time

When I came here in February 2001, I said we were going to review our portfolio of

businesses and decide what to do. We did that. In addition to selling our institutional

business, we also sold or closed businesses that did not fit our model of being America’s

Home Service Company fortified by a matching set of commercial businesses. And

we strengthened our Terminix business by acquiring Allied Bruce and Sears Termite

and Pest Control. 

Chief Executive Officer’s Letter (cont.)
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Now I’m telling you we have the focused business we want. We have the brands we

want, and what’s next for us is to gain a greater share of the markets we serve.

The opportunity to apply our exist ing business model to our exist ing markets is

tremendous. And we are going after it with tremendous concentration.

We will execute. We will do the simple but tough work of performing well and consistently

in every branch and franchise. Simultaneously, we will begin to build a high performance

organization by improving and strengthening our people and processes. Ultimately,

ServiceMaster will be an enterprise with competencies strong enough to redefine

the industry.

This future could include new lines of business optimized through training, management,

and technology. That future holds the promise of new service lines, new geographies, and

new clusters of offerings. And that future may produce “businesses within the business”

as we turn internal competencies into marketable services. We are getting ready now, so

we will be ready to act on those opportunities later. 

This is our way of making our Company’s four objectives a living reality. From time to

time, someone will advise us that to reach our goals we must jettison one objective

or another. I believe that we are fully capable of meeting all four objectives with equal

intensity, as we shall demonstrate. 

Jonathan P. Ward
President and CEO 

Chief Executive Officer’s Letter (cont.)
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Fellow Shareholders,

The major changes of 2001, including the appointment of Jon Ward as our new Chief

Executive Officer, the portfolio review he initiated, and the sale of Management Services

and TruGreen LandCare Construction represent a continuation of our commitment to

return the performance of this Company to a consistent pattern of year over year growth

in profits. Jon’s leadership has brought energy, enthusiasm, and a renewed customer

and people focus to the transformation process. As we have said in the past, this vision

and commitment extends beyond the performance of any one year and involves an

investment in building the next cycle of growth at ServiceMaster.

Change and transformation have touched almost every area of the Company. 

The largest group of people affected this past year were the people of our Management

Services business unit. Many of them started their business careers with the Company

and have faithfully served our customers and contributed to our growth. It was difficult for

all of us to come to the conclusion that the best opportunity for them in the future would

not involve ServiceMaster. The dynamics of markets were changing. Customers and

suppliers were consolidating, especially in the health care market, and the opportunities

of the future required this business unit to become part of the consolidation process.

A change was needed, and our decision for change has the potential to bring greater

benefits to the customer and more growth opportunities for the people.



We are grateful for the way the people of Management Services have carried this

decision of change and we thank them for their many contributions to our Company and

for their continued gift of friendship. As they join the Aramark team, we encourage them

to continue their focus on service to the customer and to live and practice the values that

have been an integral part of their training and life at ServiceMaster.

As change has been a way of l ife at ServiceMaster, it also has touched our Board

of Directors. For the past several years, the Board has been reviewing its method

of operation, size, and composition with the objective of continuing to improve its

performance and effectiveness. As a result of this process, the Board has developed a

set of guiding principles for the future and has determined to reduce its size to not more

than 12 Directors. The Board also has decided to expand the role and effectiveness of

its standing committees and to l imit the membership of both present and former

management to not more than two Directors. The Board also plans to combine the role

of Chairman and CEO at the time of our Annual Meeting. These changes are explained

more fully in our proxy statement. 

We recognize that change is necessary to intercept entropy. It can be a stimulus for

growth as it is combined with continuity. But change also has its risks and does result in

some uncertainty. It often tests the reality of foundational beliefs. 

As all of us have reflected upon the events of September 11, we have been reminded that

there are forces of change beyond our control. In such a time, it is well to be reminded of

Who is in control and what is our relationship to Him. For me, God has been a sustaining

force during times of change, including the turbulent waters of uncertainty. We are all

prisoners of our hope. It is our hope and vision for what could be that inspires us and

those we lead. I am excited about what’s ahead of us as America’s Home Service

Company and I am thankful for the commitment of our leadership to honor God in all they

do, to help people develop, to pursue excellence, and to grow profitably. 

C. William Pollard
Chairman 

Chairman’s Letter
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“The Advantage of Servant Leadership” 
by Jonathan P. Ward

I believe that the healthiest organization is one where, over time, there’s a strong voluntary

support of its values and objectives — where people sign themselves up for the mission.

This level of dedication can only be created and sustained if you lead in a way that makes

human sense. 

There is a tradition of this kind of leadership at ServiceMaster. One of our executives

tells the story of his first company meeting at which Ken Hansen, who had recently retired

as CEO of ServiceMaster, was the after-dinner speaker. As Ken was waiting to speak, he

noticed a server with a large tray of desserts heading toward a stand that was already

occupied by another tray. Ken jumped up and removed the first tray, clearing the way for

the server. His action was an example of servant leadership for anyone who might have

been watching. But Ken would not have seen it that way — for him it was just the right

thing to do. 

Servant leadership makes human sense. It simply says lead as you would wish to be led.

Servant leadership says that patience, attention, encouragement, respect, fair standards,

compelling goals, and honest feedback are desirable — whether you are the leader or the led.

This doesn’t diminish the need for the leader to have a vision, to make difficult decisions,

or to build excellence throughout the enterprise. Servant leaders don’t abandon their

stewardship to the people who have invested their money with the organization.

Servant leadership simply says that we’re going to do it in a way that recognizes the

human dignity of every person — which means we will develop people as we deliver results.

One member of our leadership team still talks about his first big management assignment:

to take over a branch that was falling well short of the Company’s expectations. With

great empathy, acute awareness, and a sincere desire to heal — he set standards

and enforced them. In short order, the branch was meeting its objectives and a new

generation of servant leaders was stepping forward.    

Business leaders across America ask “How can we increase our people’s dedication to

our mission? How can we capture people’s hearts and minds, not just their hands and

feet?” And then they segregate faith from the process.

If you’re in search of a solution, you don’t exclude important data and then expect to get

to the right answer. The essential fact here is that, year in and year out, the number of

Americans who say they believe in God is consistently between 96 and 98 percent. 

Jon Ward has the gift and skill of leadership. His ability to quickly grasp the issues, decide on a course of action,

and motivate people to follow is remarkable. In this essay, he reflects upon his learning and growing in becoming a 

servant leader. This is a principle of leadership that we have tried to both know and do as we have grown our Company.

We have found that it helps us to define reality and avoid the deception of arrogance. It has been a special privilege for

me to work with Jon and support him as he both leads and serves. 

- C. William Pollard -



The Advantage of Servant Leadership
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I suggest that building passionate commitment to a company and its mission comes

from recognizing and accepting the full person — complete with deep and complex

relationships to their vocation, family, and faith.

ServiceMaster has four objectives. From the inside I can vouch that there’s a constant

tension between all four. The objective that is unusual for a large, public firm is that we are

committed “To honor God in all we do.” 

During my first year at ServiceMaster I’ve been asked many times to pin it down — to

define exactly what it means — as if there was a prescription for its application. The

strength of that simple statement is that it’s a profound concept that has a personal

meaning to every person who chooses to serve our Company. 

For me, God is real. My personal faith has at its center Jesus Christ, who challenges me

to be more like him — to use his life as an example — to live in service to others. Luke 22:27

says “For who is greater, the one who is at the table or the one who serves? Is it not the

one who is at the table? But I am among you as the one who serves.”

As a leader I’m highly aware that my life touches many lives. I want to build an enterprise

where servant leadership is the model of how we interact with one another. 

As Robert K. Greenleaf wrote in The Servant as Leader, “There is something subtle

communicated to one who is being served and led if, implicit in the compact between the

servant leader and the led, is the understanding that the search for wholeness is something

they share.”

I respect and encourage deep faith. Whether it is a Christian, Jew, Muslim, Buddhist or

Hindu — I strive to ensure that they are welcome at ServiceMaster. 

This is consistent with our American tradition where there’s no official religion nor do we

impose a particular belief in public policy. Our country’s foundation of faith depends on its

free acceptance by its believers.

This year our nation has seen a remarkable convergence of faith and freedom. After hearing

of the events of September 11, there was a spontaneous desire to gather together and

pray, which we did all across ServiceMaster. Everyone was welcome. The collective

need for prayer and meditation has no bounds — nor should it. 

Several months later I had the privilege to visit Washington, D.C. and spend time with

ServiceMaster people who were working to restore the Pentagon after the terrorist attack.

Everyone knew they were doing more than cleaning up — they were helping to minister

and heal the country. I pray that we keep that sense of purpose on days without  tragedy. 

My goal is to persuade every person to act as a servant leader. If, as servant leaders, we each

become deeply engaged in our daily experience and, without prejudice, accept the people

involved and seek to understand and serve them, I believe the effect will be a reciprocal return

of trust, acceptance and support. It has the power to change the world we serve.



financial highlights
(In thousands, except per share data)

For years ended December 31 2001 2000 Change 

Operating Results

(Continuing Operations)

Customer level revenue (1) $ 5,146,000 $ 4,897,000 5% 

Operating revenue 3,601,429 3,485,517 3% 
Operating income before charge for impaired assets

and other items (2) 309,298 333,742 (7%)
Operating income after charge for impaired assets and other items (2) (87,445) 333,742

Net income from continuing operations before charge for impaired 
assets and other items (2) 113,761 136,796 (17%)

Net income (loss) from continuing operations after 
charge for impaired assets and other items (2) (171,779) 136,796 

Net income from discontinued operations (2) 330,234 48,192 
Extraordinary loss in 2001 and accounting change in 2000 (3,422) (11,161)

Reported net income $ 155,033 $ 173,827 

Diluted earnings per share: (3)

Continuing operations before charge for impaired assets and
other items $ 0.38 $ 0.45 (16%)

Charge for impaired assets and other items (0.92) – 

Net income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.54) $ 0.45 

Discontinued operations, net 1.06 0.16 
Extraordinary loss (0.01) – 
Cumulative effect of accounting change – (0.04)

Diluted earnings per share - reported $ 0.51 $ 0.57 (11%)

Pro Forma Results (4)

Diluted earnings per share:(3)

Continuing operations before charge for impaired assets
and other items $ 0.38 $ 0.45 (16%)

Interest expense reduction (4) 0.06 0.07 
Diluted earnings per share equivalent of reduced amortization

expense under new accounting rules (4) 0.14 0.13 

As adjusted diluted earnings per share $ 0.58 $ 0.65 (11%)

Cash dividends per share $ 0.40 $ 0.38 5%

Financial Position
Total assets $ 3,674,739 $ 3,979,834 
Total debt 1,140,677 1,818,117 
Shareholders' equity 1,220,961 1,161,588 

Share Price Range
(Traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol SVM)
High price $ 14.20 $ 14.94 
Low price 9.84 8.25 
Closing price 13.80 11.50 

(1) Customer level revenue represents the combined revenues of the Company’s direct operations and the estimated revenues of its various domestic
and international independent licensees and franchisees. 

(2) In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a series of actions related to the strategic review of its portfolio of business-
es that commenced earlier in the year. These actions included the sale in November 2001 of the Company’s Management Services business (with a
related pretax gain of $640 million, $384 million after-tax) as well as the decision to exit certain non-strategic and underperforming businesses includ-
ing TruGreen LandCare Construction and Certified Systems, Inc., as well as certain other operations. These operations are included in “Discontinued
operations” in all periods. In 2001, net income from discontinued operations consisted of; income from the Management Services segment ($34 mil-
lion), net loss from other discontinued operations ($7 million), and the gain on the sale of Management Services net of losses from the disposition of
other entities ($303 million). The Company also recorded a pretax charge of $397 million ($286 million after-tax) in the fourth quarter of 2001, related
primarily to goodwill and asset impairments as well as other items. See the Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations for a discussion of the components of discontinued operations and of the charge for impaired assets and other items. 

(3) Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on 311,408 shares in 2001 and 305,518 shares in 2000. In 2001, the calculation of diluted earnings per
share includes the impact of convertible securities. See the “Earnings Per Share” section in the footnotes to the consolidated financial statements for
the impact of the convertible securities to the diluted earnings per share calculation. 

(4) The Company has calculated pro forma earnings per share assuming: (1) only continuing operations existed, (2) after-tax proceeds from the sales of
Management Services and certain European pest control operations were used to repay debt, and (3) SFAS 142 (“Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”) was effective. 

Continuing operations exclude Management Services, LandCare Construction, CSI (the professional employer organization) and the sold European
pest control operations. As noted, these businesses were either sold or exited in the fourth quarter of 2001. The Company received approximately
$740 million of after-tax proceeds, net of expected cash payments relating to the sale and exit of these businesses.Therefore, the Company is expect-
ing to reduce its annual interest expense by $22 million (after-tax) by using the net proceeds to pay down debt. This will be inherent in the 2002 earn-
ings. In addition, SFAS 142, which is required to be adopted in 2002, effectively eliminates amortization of goodwill expense. This elimination of
expense will result in an adjustment of $.14 in 2001 and $.13 in 2000 to the previous earnings per share which were calculated under the old account-
ing rules (APB 17).
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
(Results of the Company’s Portfolio Review and Strategic Actions)

2001 Compared with 2000

Revenues from continuing operations in 2001 increased
three percent to a $3.6 billion. The Company reported an
operating loss after recording a $397 million charge for good-
will and asset impairments and other items. Operating
income excluding the charge decreased seven percent to
$309 million. Operating income margins on this basis
decreased to 8.6 percent of revenues from 9.6 percent in
2000. The decrease in margins reflected strong growth in
the Terminix and Home Maintenance and Improvement
segments offset primarily by lower operating earnings in Tru-
Green and increased investments in various enterprise initia-
tives and incentives. Reported net income was $155 million in
2001 and $174 million in 2000 and diluted earnings per share
was $.51 in 2001 and $.57 in 2000. Diluted earnings per
share includes various components as detailed below: 

2001 2000

Continuing operations before
charge for impaired assets 
and other items $ .38 $ .45

Charge for impaired 
assets and other items (.92) –

Continuing operations - reported (.54) .45

Discontinued operations 1.06 .16
Extraordinary loss and 

accounting change* (.01) (.04)

Diluted earnings per share $ .51 $ .57 

*Reflects an extraordinary loss resulting from the repurchase of 
certain ServiceMaster corporate bonds in 2001 and a cumulative effect
of an accounting change in 2000.

Discontinued Operations

On October 3, 2001 the Company’s Board of Directors
approved a series of strategic actions which were the culmi-
nation of an extensive portfolio review process that was initiat-
ed in the first quarter. The goal of the portfolio review was to
increase shareholder value by creating a focused and aligned
company that provides the greatest return and growth poten-
tial. The Company determined it could best achieve these
goals with a portfolio of businesses which support the busi-
ness strategy to become America’s Home Service Company
and have attractive cash flow and return characteristics. In
addition, the Company believed it was critical to strengthen its
balance sheet through the reduction of debt, thereby providing
it with financial flexibility to invest in future growth opportunities.

As part of this determination, the Company’s Board of Direc-
tors approved an agreement to sell the Management Services
business to ARAMARK Corporation (ARAMARK) for approxi-
mately $800 million. The Management Services business pro-
vided a variety of supportive management services to
institutional healthcare, education, and commercial facilities.
The all-cash transaction closed on November 30, 2001 and
the Company recorded an after-tax accounting gain of $384
million, or $1.23 per diluted share from this sale. As part of the
sale of Management Services, the Company also agreed to
sell to ARAMARK its headquarters facilities located in Down-
ers Grove, Illinois and agreed to allow ARAMARK to use the
ServiceMaster name for a period of time in related markets.
Deferred royalty income was recorded upon the sale of this
business and provisions for legal claims, severance and other
smaller items were established for the remaining Company
obligations. From the proceeds of this transaction, the Com-
pany has remaining approximately $7 million of after-tax cash
payments which are expected to be made in 2002 along with
$70 million of taxes resulting from the sale of this business. 

In the fourth quarter, the Company’s Board of Directors also
approved the exit of non-strategic and underperforming busi-
nesses including TruGreen LandCare Construction and Certi-
fied Systems Inc. (CSI), as well as certain other small operations.

The Company sold its TruGreen LandCare Construction
operations to Environmental Industries, Inc. (EII) in certain
markets and entered into an agreement with EII to manage the
wind-down of commercial landscaping construction contracts
in the remaining markets. In addition, the Company sold all of
its customer contracts relating to the exit of CSI (the Company’s
professional employer organization), to AMS Staff Leasing,
N.A., Inc. and has almost completed the wind-down of its
remaining operations.

In connection with the exit of LandCare Construction and
CSI, certain assets (including accounts receivable, inventory
and fixed assets) were written down to net realizable value.
Due to revised cost estimates, the Company also recorded an
adjustment relating to its construction contracts which were
accounted for under the percentage of completion methodol-
ogy. Provisions for transaction fees, severance, increased
health and workers’ compensation insurance costs, and lease
terminations were also recorded. There remains approximate-
ly $38 million of after-tax payments to be made relating to
these discontinued operations which will be partially offset by
approximately $20 million of after-tax cash collections from
the remaining assets. 

On October 30, 2001, the Company closed the sale of certain
subsidiaries of its European pest control and property services
operations for $101 million. The consideration consisted of
$94 million of cash and the transfer of certain liabilities to the
acquirer and $7 million in seller financing. The net impact of
this transaction was not material to the consolidated state-
ments of income. The Company continues to provide pest
control services in the United Kingdom and Ireland. 

Reported “Discontinued operations” include the operating
results of the sold and discontinued businesses noted above
as well as the gain from the sale of Management Services,
net of losses from the disposition of other entities. The com-
ponents of discontinued operations are as follows: 

(In thousands) 2001 2000 1999 

Management 
Services income* $ 33,705 $ 40,150 $ 47,298

Income (loss) from 
other discontinued
operations (7,068) 8,042 13,567

Gain on sale of 
Management Services, 
net of losses 
from disposition of 
other entities 303,597 – –

Discontinued 
operations $ 330,234 $ 48,192 $ 60,865

* This business was sold on November 30, 2001, consequently the 2001
results reflect eleven months of operations. 

Charge for Impaired Assets and Other Items

As noted previously, the Company recorded a $397 million
charge for asset impairments and other items in the fourth
quarter of 2001. This charge included the write-down of $350
million of goodwill; $300 million associated with the land-
scaping operations and $50 million related to the remaining
European pest control operations. The remaining amount of
the charge includes accruals for guarantees relating to the
residual value of certain properties, severance arrangements
for former executives and terminated employees, and other
items. There is approximately $22 million (after-tax) in cash
payments expected for the property guarantees and sever-
ance, with the majority expected to be paid out in 2002. The
Company has reviewed the impairment provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No.142, “Goodwill and Oth-
er Intangible Assets” and, based on this assessment, the Com-
pany does not expect any further impairment charges upon
adoption of this statement in 2002. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (cont.)

Extraordinary Loss 

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company used a portion of
the cash proceeds from the sale of Management Services to
pay down debt balances and recorded an extraordinary loss
of $.03 per diluted share ($9 million after-tax) resulting from
the early extinguishment of debt. This was partially offset by
the realization of gains ($.02 per diluted share; $6 million
after-tax) resulting from the repurchase of certain Service-
Master corporate bonds in the first quarter. 

Outlook and Strategic Actions

The Company has calculated pro forma earnings per share
assuming: (1) only continuing operations existed, (2) after-tax
proceeds from the sales of Management Services and certain
European pest control operations were used to repay debt
and (3) SFAS 142 (“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”)
was effective. On that basis, earnings per share for 2001 was
$.58 compared with $.65 for 2000. 

2001 2000 

Continuing operations before 
charge for impaired assets 
and other items $ .38 $ .45 

Interest expense reduction
from proceeds of sales .06 .07 

SFAS 142 impact .14 .13 

As adjusted diluted earnings 
per share $ .58 $ .65 

The Company received approximately $740 million of after-
tax proceeds, net of expected cash payments related to the
sale and exit of businesses. Therefore, the Company is
expecting to reduce its annual interest expense by $22 million
(after-tax) by using the net proceeds to pay down debt. SFAS
142 requires that, beginning in 2002, goodwill will no longer
be amortized. Had the provisions of SFAS 142 been applied
to 2001 and 2000, amortization expense would have been
reduced by $61 million ($42 million, after-tax) and $59 million
($41 million, after-tax), respectively. 

With fewer competing priorities and goals the Company will
concentrate on organic growth and take action to build
greater process discipline and drive data measurement
throughout the organization. On the adjusted basis explained
above, management anticipates that earnings per share in
2002 will be in the range of $.60 to $.63. Operating income
from the business units is expected to grow at double-digit
rates offset in part, by investments and certain non-operating
items. This outlook includes an estimate of $20 million for the
implementation of Six Sigma and initiatives to measure cus-
tomer and employee satisfaction. The Company is also mak-
ing additional investments to improve sales and customer
retention, and to rollout a pilot marketing program with Home
Depot. The Company expects an offsetting return on these
initiatives of approximately $15 million in 2002 and for them to
be accretive in 2003. The Company has begun implementing
Six Sigma, with a broadening rollout of the program expected
to occur over a twelve to twenty-four month period. Six Sig-
ma is a continuous improvement methodology that drives
improved business results. The Company has identified team
leaders across the Company and in November hired a senior
executive who has overall responsibility for the implementa-
tion of Six Sigma. The Company has engaged a recognized
leader in customer and employee data collection to assist in
its effort to measure and analyze customer and employee
satisfaction. Earnings per share growth in the second half of
the year is expected to be stronger than in the first half as the
growth and savings related to the investments are expected
to materialize later in the year. 

The outlook also reflects a reduction in earnings from certain
non-operating items compared to 2001 levels, including the
elimination of $6 million in minority interest income as well as a
reduction of approximately $8 million in investment income
generated through venture capital and other portfolio gains. 

Continuing Operations

The events of September 11th and the already weakened
economy contributed to earnings pressure during the third
and fourth quarters by bringing caution and changes in con-
sumer buying behavior. Although the potential effects in Ser-
viceMaster’s business will primarily be based on longer-term
economic trends, some impacts have already begun to be
seen including customers deferring the replacement of HVAC
units, a reduced propensity of landscape and lawn care cus-
tomers to purchase enhancements, and increased skips in
maid service. Although certain areas of the Company experi-
enced heavily dampened sales and renewal activity in Sep-
tember, the Company has seen much of the activity come
back. The home services market has proven to be very
resilient and management believes that families view home
services as being less discretionary than ever before. The sta-
bility of the Company’s recurring base of business results in
more pressure on new sales in an economic downturn, but
revenue overall is not as dramatically affected as in many oth-
er sectors of the economy. 

TruGreen Segment

The TruGreen segment includes lawn care operations per-
formed under the TruGreen ChemLawn brand name and
landscape maintenance services provided under the Tru-
Green LandCare brand name. This segment’s results for both
2001 and 2000 exclude the discontinued TruGreen LandCare
Construction business. The combined unit reported rev-
enues of $1.4 billion, consistent with the prior year. Operating
income decreased to $143 million from $166 million last year.
2001 operating income includes approximately $9 million of
expense relating to a revised estimate of prior year insurance
reserves which arose in the process of splitting out the con-
struction business from the balance sheet. 

Revenues in the lawn care business were consistent with the
prior year, reflecting the realization of price increases and
growth in ancillary services, offset by a decrease in customer
counts. The lawn care operations’ results were impacted by
winter weather conditions that persisted much later in 2001
than in the prior year, resulting in reduced production levels
and lower margins from sub-optimal labor utilization and fixed
cost leverage. In addition, management was optimistic that
the selling season, which had been delayed due to adverse
weather in March and April, was going to rebound in the sec-
ond and third quarters. However, sales were below expecta-
tions and margins in the lawn care operations were
unfavorably impacted by a cost structure that was in place to
support a higher anticipated level of demand. 

Landscaping services revenues increased one percent
compared to last year. Top-line growth was affected by man-
agement’s decision to enforce stricter profitability standards
on contract sales and renewals as well as soft sales in
enhancement services. Operating margins in the landscap-
ing operations were lower, reflecting the impact of integration
challenges that had not yet begun to emerge in the prior year
period. In addition, higher plant and material costs were a
factor, offset in part by improving labor efficiency. 

The leadership in TruGreen is implementing a number of
programs designed to address many of the issues that have
contributed to the 2001 performance. Some of these pro-
grams will require investments. Under the direction of new
marketing leadership, several initiatives have been started
that enhance the database information, segment the cus-
tomers and improve management’s understanding of cus-
tomer satisfaction drivers. Additional programs are focused
on increasing the effectiveness of procurement initiatives to
improve the segment’s cost structure. Capital employed
decreased six percent primarily reflecting continued
improvement of working capital and the reduction of excess
equipment levels.
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Terminix Segment

The Terminix segment, which includes the domestic termite
and pest control services, reported a 16 percent increase in
revenue to $839 million from $725 million in 2000 and operat-
ing income growth of 22 percent to $104 million from $85 mil-
lion last year. This strong growth reflects the impact of
acquisitions, the continued migration of the customer base to
termite baiting systems, improved customer retention, and
the impact of price increases. In January 2001, the Company
acquired the Allied Bruce Terminix Companies, the Compa-
ny’s largest Terminix franchise and the fourth largest pest
control company in the United States. On October 3, 2001
the Company completed the acquisition of certain assets of
Sears Termite and Pest Control, Inc. The integration of these
businesses are meeting management’s expectations and
Terminix is experiencing good lead flow from this base of new
customers. The improvement in Terminix’s operating margins
reflects the benefit of acquisitions, the continued increased
mix of higher margin termite renewals, the impact of price
increases, as well as ongoing productivity improvements and
overhead efficiencies. Capital employed increased 15 per-
cent primarily due to acquisitions, offset in part by higher pre-
paid contracts and improved working capital management.

Home Maintenance and Improvement Segment

The Home Maintenance and Improvement segment
includes heating, ventilation, air conditioning (HVAC), and
plumbing services provided under the American Residential
Services (ARS), Rescue Rooter, and American Mechanical
Services (AMS) (for commercial accounts) brand names;
home systems and appliance warranty contracts offered
through American Home Shield; and the franchised operations,
ServiceMaster Clean and Merry Maids. The segment achieved
revenues of $1.3 billion, an increase of eight percent from
$1.2 billion last year. Operating income increased six percent
to $112 million compared with $106 million in the prior year.

The ARS operations achieved modest revenue growth,
reflecting acquisitions and the impact of price increases. Call
volume for residential plumbing and HVAC services was
below management’s expectations and appears to have
been impacted by cooler weather conditions and the soften-
ing economic environment. Of all of the businesses in the
ServiceMaster portfolio, ARS has the largest mix of non-
recurring revenue and is most affected by new construction,
and consequently appears to be most impacted by the con-
dition of the economy. In an effort to mitigate the impact of the
volume shortfall on operating margins, the Company imple-
mented a detailed cost reduction program in the second and
third quarters. AMS reported strong growth in revenue, how-
ever the business is experiencing reduced project bidding
activity from overall lower construction activity in the market.
American Home Shield reported a double-digit revenue
increase, continuing its strong growth across all major distrib-
ution channels. The franchise operations, ServiceMaster
Clean and Merry Maids, achieved double-digit growth,
reflecting strong growth in disaster restoration services, the
benefit of successful marketing programs, national
account relationships, and employee retention initiatives.
Capital employed in this unit increased six percent, primarily
reflecting acquisitions at ARS. 

Other Operations Segment

Other Operations consists of the Company’s international
operations; ServiceMaster Home Service Center (formerly
WeServeHomes.com); the Company’s headquarters opera-
tions; and certain operations the Company divested prior to
2001. Revenues in the Other Operations segment declined,
reflecting the impact of operations that were divested prior to
2001. The decrease in operating income primarily reflects
investments in initiatives and incentives at the parent level as
well as increased expense in the Home Service Center and the
impact of a marketing arrangement that is no longer in place. 

Consolidated Information

On a consolidated basis, costs of services rendered and
products sold increased two percent and decreased as a
percentage of revenue to 70.7 percent from 71.4 percent in
2000. Selling and administrative expenses increased 13 per-
cent and increased as a percentage of revenue to 20.7 per-
cent from 19.0 percent in 2000. 

Interest expense decreased from the prior year, primarily
due to reduced debt levels from improved cash flows, debt
retirements with the proceeds from the Management Ser-
vices sale, and the sale of certain of the Company’s accounts
receivable throughout the year. Interest income decreased
primarily due to a lower level of investment gains realized on
the American Home Shield investment portfolio. 

Minority interest and other expense reflected $19 million
more expense than last year due to lower minority interest
income related to the ServiceMaster Home Service Center
venture, increased minority interest expense related to the
equity security issued in the Allied Bruce acquisition, and
the loss recorded on the Company’s sale of receivables.
Throughout 2000 and until May 2001, the operating losses of
ServiceMaster Home Service Center had been offset through
minority interest income (below the operating income line)
because of investments in the venture made by Kleiner,
Perkins, Caufield & Byers. In May 2001, the cumulative oper-
ating losses of ServiceMaster Home Service Center began
exceeding the funding provided by Kleiner Perkins. As a
result, the operating losses since May have been absorbed in
the accompanying financial statements without an offset at
the minority interest income line. 

As also described in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Company settled a lawsuit favorably involving
a former salesman, Ray D. Martin. The plaintiff claimed that the
Company had not paid him the full amount of commissions
due to him. In September 1999, a jury had awarded compen-
satory damages and fees of approximately $1 million and
punitive damages of $135 million. In June 2000, the trial court
reduced the total award to approximately $46 million including
punitive damages of $45 million. In November 2001, the
Georgia Court of Appeals held that the claim for unpaid com-
missions should have been limited to breach of employment
contract. The court remanded the case back to the trial
court for a new trial, noting that the plaintiff was not entitled
to punitive damages and that ServiceMaster’s motion to
dismiss the tort claims should have been granted. In January
2002, the Company announced that this case had been
settled out of court. The total compensatory damages
and fees paid by the Company in the settlement were under
$1 million.

2000 Compared with 1999

Continuing Operations

Revenues in 2000 totaled $3.5 billion, an increase of 11 per-
cent. This growth reflected the full year impact of the American
Residential Services and LandCare Maintenance businesses
which were acquired in 1999, offset, in part, by the sale of cer-
tain small businesses in 2000. Operating income before
restructuring and other items recorded in 1999 decreased nine
percent to $334 million. Operating income margins on this
basis decreased to 9.6 percent of revenues from 11.7 percent
in 1999. The losses related to the ServiceMaster Home Service
Center initiative accounted for four percent of the decrease in
operating income and about 40 basis points of the decrease in
operating margins. These losses were allocated to the Com-
pany’s minority partner in ServiceMaster Home Service Cen-
ter, Kleiner Perkins, and are offset in net minority interest
income below the operating income line. The remaining 170
basis point decrease in operating margins primarily reflects the
impact of significantly lower operating margins at TruGreen
LandCare and reduced margins in the lawn care operations
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of TruGreen ChemLawn. Reported net income was $174 mil-
lion in both 2000 and 1999 and diluted earnings per share was
$.57 in 2000 compared to $.55 in 1999. Diluted earnings per
share includes various components as detailed below:

2000 1999 

Continuing operations before 
charge for impaired assets 
and other items $ .45 $ .52

Charge for impaired 
assets and other items – (.16)

Continuing operations - reported .45 .36

Discontinued operations .16 .19
Cumulative effect of 

accounting change (.04) – 

Diluted earnings per share $ .57 $ .55

The Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission issued
Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No.101, “Revenue Recogni-
tion”, leading the Company to change in 2000 its method of
accounting for revenue from its termite baiting contracts. The
cumulative net income effect of retroactively applying the new
accounting method as of January 1, 2000 totaled $11.1 mil-
lion, or $.04 per share, and was recognized entirely in 2000.
In the second quarter of 1999, the Company realized an
after-tax gain of $30 million relating to the sale of certain non-
core businesses and recorded a one-time after-tax charge of
$81 million relating to its Diversified Health Services busi-
ness. These items reduced net income from ongoing opera-
tions by $51 million and diluted earnings per share by $.16.

TruGreen Segment

The TruGreen segment has been restated for both 2000 and
1999 to exclude the discontinued TruGreen LandCare Con-
struction business. On that basis, the segment reported rev-
enues of $1.4 billion, an increase of 12 percent, reflecting one
additional quarter of revenue from the LandCare USA acqui-
sition, smaller regional acquisitions completed during 1999,
and internal growth. Operating income decreased 22 percent
to $166 million, primarily due to the slower than anticipated
integration of the individual landscape companies and higher
production costs such as labor, healthcare, fuel and other
costs. In the landscaping operations, the process of bringing
separate business units into one company has taken longer
than anticipated. TruGreen addressed the integration issues
by strengthening the management infrastructure in several
regions, integrating these operations with the lawn care busi-
ness, and made significant progress in establishing greater
operating disciplines and in improving the cost structure.
Many year-end lawn care services that were scheduled to be
completed were canceled due to the severe winter and snow
conditions in several regions of the country. This caused the
Company to report dramatically lower than expected
profits in the fourth quarter. Capital employed by TruGreen
increased eight percent to $1.1 billion, lower than the 
12 percent revenue growth, as a result of tighter working
capital management. 

Terminix Segment

The Terminix segment reported a nine percent increase in
revenue to $725 million and operating income of $85 million,
18 percent above 1999. This growth reflects acquisitions as
well as solid increases in new termite contracts and contract
renewals, bolstered by productivity improvements and strong
overhead controls. Capital employed by Terminix increased
one percent to $526 million with strong working capital man-
agement offsetting the impact of acquisitions.

Home Maintenance and Improvement Segment

The Home Maintenance and Improvement segment achieved
a 34 percent increase in revenue to $1.2 billion reflecting good
internal growth at all of the companies and an additional four

months of operations from the ARS acquisition (which closed in
late April 1999). Operating income grew 19 percent to $106 mil-
lion, reflecting lower margins primarily attributable to the full year
inclusion of ARS which currently has lower operating margins
than the rest of this unit and, to a lesser extent, from the increase
in claim costs at American Home Shield. The integration of ARS
has continued in line with expectations and management made
significant progress in improving the financial condition, con-
trols and employee morale at many of the ARS branch locations
that were performing poorly at the time of the acquisition.
Progress was made in fulfilling the service needs of American
Home Shield customers through ARS and Rescue Rooter, with
a threefold increase in completed service transactions during
2000. The franchise operations, ServiceMaster Clean and Mer-
ry Maids, achieved solid revenue and profit increases, reflecting
strong growth in Company-owned operations and productivity
improvements. Capital employed by this unit increased seven
percent to $636 million, reflecting acquisition activity partially
offset by improved working capital management. 

Other Operations Segment

In the Other Operations segment, revenues and capital
employed decreased, reflecting the impact of operations that
were divested in 2000 and late 1999. Operating profits before
non-recurring items in this segment decreased from 1999,
reflecting the impact of losses ($14 million) relating to the
ServiceMaster Home Service Center initiative. These losses
were allocated to the Company’s minority partner in Service-
Master Home Service Center, Kleiner Perkins, and are offset
in minority interest income below the operating income line.

Consolidated Information

On a consolidated basis, costs of services rendered and
products sold increased 15 percent, primarily due to general
business growth and acquisitions. Cost of services increased
as a percentage of revenue to 71.4 percent from 69.2 percent
in 1999. This growth primarily reflects increases in direct
materials and service related costs, including labor, insurance
and fuel. Selling and administrative expenses increased 10
percent, due to general business growth and acquisitions as
well as increased investments. These costs decreased as a
percentage of revenue to 19.0 percent from 19.2 percent in 1999. 

Interest expense increased from 1999, primarily due to
increased debt levels associated with acquisitions and share
repurchases and higher rates. Interest and investment income
increased over the prior year levels due to additional gains real-
ized on financial investments and marketable securities. 

Minority interest and other expense/income includes income
resulting from the allocation of losses totaling $14 million related
to ServiceMaster Home Service Center to the Company’s
minority partner. The tax provision reflects a higher effective tax
rate compared to 1999, primarily due to the non-deductibility of
goodwill from acquisitions completed in 1999.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions required under generally accepted accounting
principles which may differ from the actual results. The more
significant areas requiring the use of management estimates
relate to the allowance for receivables, accruals for self-
insured retention limits related to medical, workers compen-
sation, auto and general liability insurance, the possible
outcomes of outstanding litigation, and the useful lives for
depreciation and amortization expense. 

The allowance for receivables is developed based on sever-
al factors including overall customer credit quality, historical
write-off experience and specific account analysis that pro-
ject the ultimate collectibility of the account. As such, these
factors may change over time causing the reserve level to
adjust accordingly.
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The Company is partially self-insured for auto and general
liability, workers compensation, and certain employee health
benefits. The related liabilities for these risks are included in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The
Company’s policy is to accrue amounts equal to the actuari-
ally determined liabilities, which are based on historical infor-
mation along with certain assumptions about future events.
Changes in assumptions related to legal actions, medical
costs, and changes in actual experience could cause these
estimates to change in the near term.

Goodwill, tangible (fixed) and intangible assets are amor-
tized and depreciated, on a straight-line basis, over their esti-
mated useful lives. These lives are based on the Company’s
previous experience for similar assets, the potential for mar-
ket obsolescence and other industry/business data. The
Company also periodically reviews the assets for impairment
and a loss would be recorded if, and when, the Company
determines that the book value of the asset exceeds its true
value to the Company. Changes in the estimated useful lives
or in asset values could cause the Company to adjust its
book value or future expense accordingly.

2001 Financial Position and Cash Flows

Cash Flows

Cash flows provided from discontinued operations have
been eliminated from cash from operations and are reported
in one line in the “Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations”
section. Net cash provided from continuing operations of
$363 million was $50 million higher than 2000. The signifi-
cant increase reflects lower working capital usage which
provided $33 million in cash flow. This result was due to
strong working capital management, reflecting improved
receivable collections and growth in customer prepayments
at the Terminix and American Home Shield companies. 

Property additions declined $17 million, reflecting reduced
purchases in TruGreen and a lower level of investments in
technology. Future additions are expected to be slightly high-
er to support business growth. Cash used for acquisitions
declined to $58 million from $152 million reflecting the use of
a convertible security instead of cash to purchase Allied
Bruce at Terminix and the reduction or curtailment of acquisi-
tions at other companies. Management anticipates continu-
ing tuck-in activity at Terminix and the return of small
acquisitions in select TruGreen markets. 

Cash and Debt Levels

Cash and marketable securities totaled approximately $483
million at December 31, 2001 (compared with $114 million
at December 31, 2000) reflecting a portion of the proceeds
from the sale of Management Services. Debt levels decreased
primarily reflecting the use of proceeds from the sales of the
Management Services and European pest control businesses
and strong cash flows from operations. In 2001 the Company
reduced its total debt by over $677 million to $1.1 billion. 

Approximately $360 million in “excess cash” remains on the
balance sheet at the end of 2001. There is $117 million of
expected payments relating to taxes on the transactions and
other items relating to discontinued operations and the
charges. The remainder is available for the repayment of debt,
which should occur in the first half of 2002. Based on that
assumption, the debt level would decline to approximately
$900 million, one-half the level at the end of 2000. 

The Company is party to a number of debt agreements
which require it to maintain certain financial and other
covenants, including limitations on indebtedness (debt can-
not exceed 3.5 times EBITDA) and interest coverage ratio
(EBITDA needs to exceed four times interest expense). In
addition, under certain circumstances, the agreements may
limit the Company’s ability to pay dividends and repurchase
shares of common stock. These limitations are not expected

to be a factor in the Company’s future dividend and share
repurchase plans. Failure by the Company to maintain these
covenants could result in the acceleration of the maturity of
the debt. At December 31, 2001, the Company is in compli-
ance with the covenants related to these debt agreements
and based on its operating outlook for 2002, expects to be
able to maintain compliance in the future.

The Company does not have any debt agreements that
contain put rights or provide for acceleration of the debt as a
result of a change in credit rating. However, the Company
has a number of debt agreements which contain standard
ratings-based “pricing grids” where the interest rate payable
under the agreement changes as the Company’s credit
rating changes. While the Company does not expect a nega-
tive change in credit ratings, the impact on interest expense
resulting from changes in credit ratings is not expected to be
material to the Company.

Management believes that funds generated from operations
and other existing resources will continue to be adequate to
satisfy ongoing working capital needs of the Company. Late in
2001, the Company syndicated a three-year revolving credit
facility for $490 million, which will expire in December 2004.
As of December 31, 2001, the Company had issued
approximately $66 million of letters of credit under the facility
and had unused commitments of approximately $424 million.
The Company also has $550 million of senior unsecured debt
and equity securities available for issuance under an effective
shelf registration statement.

In 2001, the Company entered into an agreement to ulti-
mately sell, on a revolving basis, certain receivables to unre-
lated third party purchasers. At year end there are no
receivables outstanding that had been sold to third parties. 
The agreement is a 364-day facility that is renewable at the
option of the purchasers. The Company may sell up to $65
million of  its receivables to these purchasers in the future and
therefore has immediate access to cash proceeds from these
sales. The Company also maintains operating lease facilities
with banks totaling $95 million which provide for the acqui-
sition and development of properties to be leased by the
Company. There is a residual value guarantee of these
properties up to 82 percent of the fair market value of the
properties. At December 31, 2001 there was approximately
$87.5 million funded under these facilities. In the fourth quarter of
2001, the Company recorded a $17 million provision to
accrue for guarantees relating to the residual value of certain
properties. Of the $95 million facilities, $80 million expires in
October 2004 and $15 million expires in January 2008. 

The majority of the Company’s fleet is leased through can-
celable operating leases. There are residual value guarantees
(ranging from 70% to 87% depending on the agreement) on
these vehicles, which historically have not resulted in signifi-
cant net payments to the lessors. At December 31, 2001
there was approximately $260 million of residual value relat-
ing to the Company’s fleet.

The following table presents the Company’s obligations and
commitments: 

(In millions) Total < 1 Yr 2-3Yrs 4-5Yrs >5Yrs

Debt balances $1,141 $35 $86 $273 $747
Non-cancelable

operating 
leases(1) 272 76 86 55 55

Total amount $1,413 $111 $172 $328 $802

(1) In 2002, there is approximately $17 million of net payments relating to
specific properties under the operating leases described above. There
are no net payments expected (nor reflected in the table) relating to
the operating leases of the Company’s fleet.
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As of December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately
$66 million of letters of credit issued under its bank credit
facility and approximately $93 million of annually renewable
surety bonds outstanding that primarily support obligations
the Company has under insurance programs. If the surety
bonds are not renewed, the Company expects to replace them
with letters of credit issued under its bank credit facility.

Discontinued Operations

The assets and liabil it ies related to the discontinued
companies have been classified in separate captions on
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. This
includes the assets and liabilities specifically related to the
Management Services segment, the Company’s former
headquarters building, and the CSI, LandCare Construction,
and Terminix Europe (excluding the United Kingdom) busi-
nesses. As discussed previously, these operations have been
sold and the Company is in the process of completely exiting
these businesses. The decrease in assets of the discontinued
operations reflects asset sales and the writedown of
impaired assets. The decline in liabilities from discontinued
operations represents the elimination of accruals in the sold
businesses. The remaining liability represents the obligations
related to the exit of these businesses and reserves for
longer-term insurance tails and litigation exposures. (This
represents after-tax cash payments of $45 million, expected
to be paid primarily in 2002 which should be partially offset by
approximately $20 million of after-tax cash collections from
the remaining assets). 

Continuing Operations

Accounts receivable is slightly below the level last year reflect-
ing improved collections and days sales outstanding at several
companies. Prepaid expenses and other assets increased due
to the increased volume of contracts written at Terminix and
American Home Shield. The Company capitalizes sales com-
missions and other direct contract acquisition costs relating to
termite baiting and pest contracts, as well as home warranty
agreements. Property and equipment decreased, reflecting
general business growth offset by fewer large-scale technology
projects. The Company does not have any material capital
commitments at this time. 

Deferred revenue increased reflecting strong growth in
warranty contracts written at American Home Shield, increases
in customer prepayments for pest control services, as well
as the deferred royalty revenue resulting from the sale of
Management Services. 

The current tax asset reflects primarily the  expected future tax
deductions related to the cash charges recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2001. The increase in the long-term deferred tax lia-
bility primarily reflects the sale of Management Services. The tax
basis of this business exceeded its book basis and the related
deferred tax asset was eliminated with the sale of the business.
The deferred tax liability reflects the basis differences primarily
related to intangible assets. In 2002, the Company is required to
adopt SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, which
eliminates the requirement to record goodwill amortization
expense in the financial statements. The majority of the Company’s
goodwill amortization expense is deductible for tax purposes,
providing the Company an annual tax benefit of approximately
$50 million for the next ten years and diminishing thereafter.
This annual tax benefit is reflected in the Statements of Financial
Position as an increase in the deferred tax liability. In the State-
ments of Cash Flows, the adoption of SFAS 142 (and the related
elimination of amortization expense for financial statement
purposes) will result in a reclassification of approximately
$20 million into the deferred tax expense line as the tax
deduction from amortization will be eliminated from the
income statement.

As noted in the 2001 Comparison with 2000 Section of this
report, the Company recorded a fourth quarter charge to
writedown $350 million of goodwill relating to the landscap-
ing operations and the remaining European pest control
operations. Goodwill had not been previously allocated
between the LandCare construction and maintenance busi-
nesses. The writedown represents the impairment for the
entire landscaping operations. In addition, as part of the
charge, approximately $37 million of liabilities remain on the
balance sheet (in other current liabilities) relating to property
guarantees, severance arrangements and other items. (This
represents $22 million of after-tax cash payments of which
the majority is expected to be paid in 2002.) 

In December 2001, the Company acquired the minority
interest in the ServiceMaster Home Service Center (SMHSC)
held by Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers. The SMHSC was
merged into a wholly-owned subsidiary of ServiceMaster.
Pursuant to this merger, ServiceMaster purchased shares of
SMHSC owned by employees of the Company and convert-
ed options to purchase SMHSC shares into incentive options
to purchase ServiceMaster stock. A valuation opinion from a
third party firm was obtained relating to the purchase price of
the shares. Also in 2001, and in connection with the sale and
disposition of the TruGreen LandCare Construction opera-
tions, the Company repurchased the shares of TruGreen that
were previously purchased by employees earlier in the year.
The purchase and sale prices of the shares were identical. The
Company continues to maintain minority investors in the com-
bined ARS/AMS entity as well as in Terminix. Members of
management acquired, at fair market value, equity interests in
ARS. The Company and the equity investors have respective
options to acquire or sell the minority interests in the future at a
price based on fair market value. At Terminix, the minority
ownership reflects an interest issued to the prior owners of the
Allied Bruce Terminix Companies in connection with that
acquisition. This equity security is exchangeable into eight mil-
lion ServiceMaster common shares. The ServiceMaster
shares are included in the shares used for the calculation of
diluted earnings per share.

Total shareholders’ equity increased five percent to $1.2 bil-
lion, reflecting earnings offset by shareholders dividends.
Cash dividends paid directly to shareholders totaled $119
million, or $.40 per share, compared to $.38 per share in the
prior year. The total amount of cash distributions increased
four percent from the prior year, reflecting the per share increase.

In January 2002, the Company paid a cash dividend for the
first quarter of $.10 per share. In February 2002, the Compa-
ny declared a second quarter cash dividend of $.10 per share
payable on April 30, 2002. The timing and amount of future
dividend increases will be at the discretion of the Board of
Directors and will depend on, among other things, the Com-
pany’s capital structure objectives and cash requirements. In
July 2000, the Board of Directors authorized $350 million for
share repurchases. In that same year, the Company pur-
chased approximately $136 million of its shares. In 2001,
there were no material share repurchases. Decisions relating
to any future share repurchases will take various factors into
consideration such as the Company’s commitment to main-
tain investment grade credit ratings and other strategic
investment opportunities.

The Company notes that statements that look forward in time, which include
everything other than historical information, involve risks and uncertainties
that affect the Company’s results of operations. Factors which could cause
actual results to differ material ly from those expressed or implied in a
forward-looking statement include the following (among others): weather
conditions adverse to certain of the Company’s consumer and commercial
services businesses; the entry of addit ional competitors in any of the
markets served by the Company; labor shortages; unexpected changes in
operating costs; the condition of the U.S. economy; the cost and length of
time associated with integrating or winding down businesses and other
factors listed from time to time in the Company’s filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. 
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Eleven Year Financial Summary
(All share and per share data reflect the three-for-two share splits in 1998, 1997, 1996, 1993, and 1992)

(In thousands, except per share data) 2001 2000 1999

Operating Results:

Operating revenue $ 3,601,429 $3,485,517 $3,128,635

Operating income (87,445) 333,742 279,752

Operating income before charge for impaired assets

and other items (1) 309,298 333,742 365,252

Percentage of operating revenue 8.6% 9.6% 11.7%

Non–operating expense (income) 113,928 98,592 86,981

Provision for income taxes (29,594) 98,354 80,073

Net income from continuing operations (171,779) 136,796 112,698

Net income before net non–recurring items (1) 113,761 136,796 163,656

Charges and other, net (1) (285,540) – (50,958)

Continuing operations – reported (171,779) 136,796 112,698

Discontinued operations, net 330,234 48,192 60,865

Extraordinary loss, net of income taxes (3,422) – –

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes (1) – (11,161) –

Net income (pro forma corporate form prior to 1998) (2) $ 155,033 $ 173,827 $ 173,563

Earnings per share (pro forma corporate form prior to 1998): (2)

Basic $ 0.52 $ 0.57 $ 0.56 

Diluted 0.51 0.57 0.55 

Continuing operations before net non–recurring items (1) 0.38 0.45 0.52 

Charges and other, net (1) (0.92) – (0.16 ) 

Continuing operations – reported $ (0.54) $ 0.45 $ 0.36

Discontinued operations, net 1.06 0.16 0.19 

Extraordinary loss (0.01) – – 

Cumulative effect of accounting change (1) – (0.04) – 

Reported earnings per share $ 0.51 $ 0.57 $ 0.55 

Shares used to compute basic net income per share 298,659 302,487 307,637

Shares used to compute diluted net income per share 311,408 305,518 314,406 

Shares outstanding, net of treasury shares 300,531 298,474 307,530 

Cash distributions per share $ 0.40 $ 0.38 $ 0.36 

Share price range: 

High price $ 14.20 $ 14.94 $ 22.00 

Low price $ 9.84 $ 8.25 $ 10.13 

Financial Position (at year end): 

Current assets $ 1,150,658 $ 776,110 $ 751,401

Current liabilities 814,401 677,426 712,313

Working capital 336,257 98,684 39,088 

Current ratio 1.4 – 1 1.1 – 1 1.1 – 1 

Total assets $ 3,674,739 $3,979,834 $3,870,215

Total liabilities 2,351,101 2,812,313 2,661,565 

Total debt outstanding 1,140,677 1,818,117 1,769,298 

Minority interest/deferred gain 102,677 5,933 2,934 

Shareholders' equity 1,220,961 1,161,588 1,205,716 

Percentage return on weighted–average shareholders' equity 13% 14% 15% 

(1) In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a series of actions related to the strategic review of its portfolio of businesses that
commenced earlier in the year. These actions included the sale in November 2001 of the Company’s Management Services business (with a related pretax
gain of $640 million, $384 million after-tax) as well as the decision to exit certain non-strategic and underperforming businesses including TruGreen Land-
Care Construction and Certified Systems, Inc., as well as certain other operations. These operations are included in “Discontinued operations” in all peri-
ods. The Company also recorded a pretax charge of $397 million ($286 million after-tax) in the fourth quarter of 2001, related primarily to goodwill and
asset impairments as well as other items. See the Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Results of Operations for a discussion of
the components of discontinued operations and of the charge for impaired assets and other items.  

In 2000, the Company changed its method of accounting for revenue from its termite baiting contracts. The cumulative effect of this accounting change as
of January 1, 2000 was $11.1 million ($18.9 million pretax). The impact of adopting the new accounting method compared to the previous methodology
was not material in 2000. The pro forma impact of retroactively applying this accounting change in 1999, 1998, and 1997 was to reduce diluted earnings
per share by $0.02, $0.01, and $0.01, respectively.

In 1999, the Company realized a pretax gain of $50 million ($30 million after-tax) relating to the sales of certain businesses, and recorded a pretax charge of
$136 million ($81 million after-tax) relating to impaired assets and other items in its Diversified Health Services business. In the years 1991 through 1993,
the Company recorded gains on issuance of subsidiary shares, restructuring charges, and a change in accounting for post-retirement benefits.
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1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

$2,233,658 $1,813,685 $1,558,245 $1,374,835 $1,149,678 $ 987,030 $ 825,244 $ 546,081

310,094 252,792 204,967 162,094 135,254 88,660 (18,287) 42,395

310,094 252,792 204,967 162,094 135,254 88,660 60,648 42,395

13.9% 13.9% 13.2% 11.8% 11.8% 9.0% 7.3% 7.8%

77,644 69,654 42,821 74,260 71,388 24,952 (68,367) 34,020

94,647 74,728 66,249 36,223 26,486 26,470 20,931 4,068

137,803 108,410 95,897 51,611 37,380 37,238 29,149 4,307

137,803 108,410 95,897 51,611 37,380 19,238 8,187 826

– – – – – 18,000 20,962 3,481

137,803 108,410 95,897 51,611 37,380 37,238 29,149 4,307

52,179 55,060 54,532 54,243 47,632 51,025 48,807 47,788

– – – – – – – –

– – – – – – (4,470) –

$ 189,982 $ 163,470 $ 150,429 $ 105,854 $ 85,012 $ 88,263 $ 73,486 $ 52,095

$ 0.66 $ 0.57 $ 0.47 $ 0.41 $ 0.33 $ 0.35 $ 0.29 $ 0.22 

0.64 0.55 0.46 0.39 0.32 0.34 0.28 0.21 

0.46 0.36 0.29 0.19 0.14 0.08 0.03 0.01 

– – – – – 0.07 0.08 0.01 

$ 0.46 $ 0.36 $ 0.29 $ 0.19 $ 0.14 $ 0.15 $ 0.11 $ 0.02 

0.18 0.19 0.17 0.20 0.18 0.19 0.19 0.19 

– – – – – – –  – 

– – – – – – (0.02) – 

$ 0.64 $ 0.55 $ 0.46 $ 0.39 $ 0.32 $ 0.34 $ 0.28 $ 0.21 

289,315 285,944 317,381 260,382 255,650 253,919 249,828 240,276 

298,887 299,640 330,429 273,203 266,892 266,231 262,941 252,579

298,030 279,944 320,396 321,341 256,419 257,901 255,386 243,527

$ 0.33 $ 0.31 $ 0.29 $ 0.28 $ 0.27 $ 0.26 $ 0.26 $ 0.25

$ 25.50 $ 19.67 $ 11.83 $ 9.00 $ 8.41 $ 9.19 $ 5.90 $ 5.13

$ 16.00 $ 10.92 $ 8.61 $ 6.37 $ 6.37 $ 5.22 $ 4.35 $ 2.89

$ 492,633 $ 418,470 $ 342,406 $ 236,733 $ 177,266 $ 148,419 $ 146,064 $ 113,546

610,837 427,250 325,798 279,409 216,503 179,659 147,085 105,565

(118,204) (8,780) 16,608 (42,676) (39,237) (31,240) (1,021) 7,981

.8 – 1 1.0 – 1 1.1 – 1 .8 – 1 .8 – 1 .8 – 1 1.0 – 1 1.1 – 1

$2,914,851 $2,475,224 $1,846,841 $1,649,890 $1,230,839 $1,122,461 $1,005,531 $ 843,660

1,958,365 1,950,786 1,033,166 890,533 788,301 715,729 717,966 534,096

1,127,783 1,269,384 497,936 425,334 394,738 389,121 430,095 340,883

– – 16,908 12,697 135,272 117,513 77,906 187,583

956,486 524,438 796,767 746,660 307,266 289,219 209,659 121,981

25% 26% 19% 24% 28% 35% 42% 48%

(2) The Company converted from partnership to corporate form in a tax-free exchange for shareholders on December 26, 1997. Prior to the conversion, the
partnership was not subject to federal income taxes as its taxable income was allocated to the partnership’s partners. As a result of the conversion, the
Company has been a taxable entity and has been responsible for such payments. The results shown above for the years ended December 31, 1997 and
before have been restated to adjust the actual historical partnership information to a pro forma basis that assumes that reincorporation had occurred as of
the beginning of that year. The pro forma provision for income taxes has been calculated assuming that the Company’s effective tax rate had been approx-
imately 40 percent of pretax earnings. Actual historical net income per share as a partnership for 1997 was $264,076 and basic and diluted earnings per
share were $.92 and $.89, respectively. Including the one-time tax gain related to reincorporation, 1997 net income was $329,076 and basic and diluted
earnings per share were $1.15 and $1.10, respectively.



32

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation: The consolidated financial state-
ments include the accounts of ServiceMaster and its majori-
ty-owned subsidiary partnerships and corporations,
collectively referred to as the Company.  Intercompany trans-
actions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
Certain immaterial 2000 and 1999 amounts have been
reclassified to conform with the 2001 presentation.  

Critical Accounting Policies: The preparation of the con-
solidated financial statements requires management to make
certain estimates and assumptions  required under generally
accepted accounting principles which may differ from the
actual results.  The more significant areas requiring the use of
management estimates relate to the allowance for receivables,
accruals for self-insured retention limits related to medical,
workers compensation, auto and general liability insurance,
the possible outcomes of outstanding litigation, and the useful
lives for depreciation and amortization expense.

The allowance for receivables is developed based on sev-
eral factors including overall customer credit quality, histori-
cal write-off experience and specific account analysis that
project the ultimate collectibility of the account. As such,
these factors may change over time causing the reserve
level to adjust accordingly.

The Company is partially self-insured for auto and general
liability, workers compensation, and certain employee
health benefits. The related liabilities for these risks are
included in the accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments. The Company’s policy is to accrue amounts equal to
the actuarially determined liabilities, which are based on
historical information along with certain assumptions about
future events. Changes in assumptions related to legal
actions, medical costs, and changes in actual experience
could cause these estimates to change in the near term.

Goodwill, tangible (fixed) and intangible assets are amor-
tized and depreciated, on a straight-line basis, over their esti-
mated useful lives. These lives are based on the Company’s
previous experience for similar assets, the potential for market
obsolescence and other industry/business data. The Compa-
ny also periodically reviews the assets for impairment and a
loss would be recorded if, and when, the Company deter-
mines that the book value of the asset exceeds the true value
to the Company. Changes in the estimated useful lives or in
asset values could cause the Company to adjust its book
value or future expense accordingly.

Revenues:  Revenues from lawn care, pest control, heat-
ing/air conditioning and plumbing services are recognized as
the services are provided.  Revenues from landscaping services
are recognized based upon agreed monthly contract payments
or when services are performed for non-contractual arrange-
ments. Revenues from the Company’s commercial installation
contracts, primarily relating to HVAC, are recognized on the per-
centage of completion method in the ratio that total incurred
costs bear to total estimated costs.  Fees from home warranty
and termite baiting contracts are recognized as revenues over
the life of the contract while the service costs are expensed as
incurred. Franchised services revenues (which in aggregate
represents approximately three percent of consolidated totals)
consist of initial franchise fees received from the sales of licens-
es, sales of products to franchisees, and continuing monthly
fees based upon franchise revenue.

Inventory Valuation: Inventories are valued at the lower of
cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market.  Inventory costs
include material, labor, and factory overhead and related han-
dling costs. Raw materials represent less than two percent of
the inventory value at December 31, 2001.  The remaining
inventory is finished goods to be used on the customers’
premises or sold to franchisees.

Depreciation and Amortization: Buildings and equip-
ment used in the business are stated at cost and depreciated
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method
for financial reporting purposes.  The estimated useful lives for
building and improvements range from 10 to 40 years, while the
estimated useful lives for equipment range from three to 10
years.  Leasehold improvements relating to leased facilities are
depreciated over the remaining life of the lease.  Technology
equipment as well as software and development have an esti-
mated useful life of three to seven years.  Intangible assets con-
sist primarily of goodwill ($1.9 billion), trade names ($240 million)
and covenants not to compete ($75 million).  As required by
Accounting Principles Board (APB) No. 17, these assets were
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives, not to exceed 40 years.  As discussed in the “Newly
Issued Accounting Statements and Positions” note, Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 requires that for fis-
cal years beginning after December 31, 2001, existing goodwill
will no longer be subject to amortization and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives will not be amortized until their useful
lives are determined to be no longer indefinite. 

The Company’s long-lived assets, including fixed assets and
intangible assets (other than goodwill), are periodically reviewed
to determine recoverability by comparing their carrying values
to the undiscounted future cash flows expected to be realized
from their use. No recovery problems have been indicated by
these comparisons. Based on the reviews, when the undis-
counted future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of
the asset, an impairment loss is recognized based on the
asset’s fair value, and the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced accordingly.

The Company’s policy for assessing enterprise-level goodwill
impairment utilizes a discounted cash flow methodology, in
which the present value of the future expected cash flows of a
business are compared to its book value.  To the extent the
book value of a business exceeds the discounted cash flows,
an impairment loss would be recorded.  As discussed in the
“Portfolio Review and Strategic Actions” footnote, in the
course of completing its portfolio review, the Company record-
ed impairment charges related to the goodwill of TruGreen
LandCare, and the United Kingdom Terminix operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Credit Risk:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receiv-
ables, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities approximate
fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments.
The carrying amounts of long-term receivables approximate
fair value as the effective rates for these instruments are com-
parable to market rates at year-end. The carrying amount of
investments also approximate fair value as unrealized gains
and losses on investments accounted for at market value are
reported net-of-tax as a component of accumulated compre-
hensive income (loss) until the investment is sold, at which
time the realized gain or loss is included in income. The carry-
ing amount of long-term debt is approximately $1.1 billion
and $1.75 billion and the estimated fair value is $1.1 billion
and $1.5 billion at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
The estimated fair value of debt is based upon borrowing
rates currently available to the Company for long-term bor-
rowings with similar terms and maturities.

The Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes. The Company has entered
into specific financial arrangements in the normal course of
business to manage certain market risks, with a policy of
matching positions and limiting the terms of contracts to rela-
tively short durations. The effect of financial instrument trans-
actions is not material to the Company’s results of operations.

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company
to credit risk, consist principally of investments and accounts
receivable. Investments consist pr imari ly of publ ic ly-
traded debt and common equity securities. The Company
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

has not experienced any material loss on its investments. 
Concentration of credit risk with respect to the receivables are
limited due to the large number of customers and the dispersion
across geographical areas. The Company maintains an
allowance for losses based upon the expected collectibility of
accounts receivable.

Income Taxes: The Company accounts for income taxes
under the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” This statement uses an
asset and liability approach that requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in the
Company’s financial statements or tax returns. Deferred
income taxes are provided to reflect the differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported
amounts in the financial statements. 

Earnings Per Share: Basic earnings per share is based on
the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average common shares for the
diluted earnings per share calculation include the incremental
effect related to outstanding options whose market price is in
excess of the exercise price. Shares potentially issuable under
convertible securities have been considered outstanding for
purposes of the diluted earnings per share calculation.

Change in Accounting Principle: In December 1999,
the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission issued
Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101 “Revenue Recogni-
tion,” which provides additional guidance in applying general-
ly accepted accounting principles for revenue recognition in
financial statements.  The Company’s interpretation of the
requirements of SAB No. 101 resulted in changes during
2000 to the Company’s accounting policies for revenue
recognition on sales of its termite baiting contracts.  Prior to
the adoption of SAB No. 101, the Company recognized
approximately 80% of the termite baiting revenue at the time
of the sale and installation of the baiting station, while the
remaining 20% of the revenue was recognized over the life of
the contract as follow-up inspections of the stations were
performed.  As a result of SAB No. 101, the Company’s policy
is to recognize revenue over the life of the contract.  In addi-
tion, sales commissions and other direct contract acquisition
costs are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the life of the contract. 

The change in method of accounting for termite baiting con-
tracts was effective January 1, 2000.  The cumulative effect of
the accounting change, as of January 1, 2000, resulted in a
non-cash charge that reduced net income for the year ended
December 31, 2000 by $11.1 million, ($18.9 million pretax).
The cumulative after-tax effect on both basic and diluted
earnings per share was a reduction of $.04.  The impact of
adopting the new accounting method compared to the previ-
ous methodology was not material in 2000.  The pro forma
impact in 1999 of this change was to reduce diluted earnings
per share by $.02.

Newly Issued Accounting Statements and Positions:

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
141, “Business Combinations” (SFAS 141) and No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (SFAS 142).  SFAS
141 requires all business combinations initiated after June
30, 2001, to be accounted for using the purchase method.
SFAS 142 requires that for fiscal years beginning after
December 31, 2001 existing goodwill will no longer be sub-
ject to amortization and intangible assets with indefinite use-
ful lives will not be amortized until their useful lives are
determined to be no longer indefinite.  Goodwill and intangi-
ble assets that are not subject to amortization will be subject
to at least an annual assessment for impairment by applying a
fair-value-based test.  Given the Company’s policy of assess-

ing enterprise-level goodwill, which utilizes a discounted
cash flow methodology, the Company does not expect the
adoption of SFAS 142 to have a material impact to the Com-
pany’s financial statements.  The elimination of amortization
expense under SFAS 142 would have resulted in increases to
diluted earnings per share of $.14, $.13, and $.11 in 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” (SFAS 144) which amends certain requirements of the
previously issued pronouncement on asset impairment,
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 121. SFAS
144 expands the definition of a discontinued operation as
previously defined by Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.
30. This statement is required to be adopted for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001, however early application
of this statement is permissible.  The Company adopted SFAS
144 effective January 1, 2001 and has classified the results of
certain business units that it has sold or is winding-down,
including Management Services, TruGreen LandCare Con-
struction, Certified Systems Inc., and the sold Terminix Europe
entities as discontinued operations in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. 

Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Shareholders of The ServiceMaster Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of financial position of THE SERVICEMASTER COM-
PANY (organized under the laws of the State of Delaware)
AND SUBSIDIARIES, as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the related consolidated statements of income, share-
holders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States.  Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of The ServiceMaster Company and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As explained in the Summary of Significant Accounting Poli-
cies section of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial State-
ments, effective January 1, 2000, the Company changed
certain of its accounting principles for revenue recognition as
a result of the adoption of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101
“Revenue Recognition”, and effective January 1, 2001, the
Company changed its accounting principles for discontinued
operations and impairment of long-lived assets as a result of
the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets”.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP
Chicago, Illinois
January 24, 2002
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Statements of Income
(In thousands, except per share data)

For years ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999 

Operating Revenue $ 3,601,429 $ 3,485,517 $ 3,128,635 

Operating Costs and Expenses: 

Cost of services rendered and products sold 2,546,207 2,489,151 2,163,458 

Selling and administrative expenses 745,924 662,624 599,925 

Charge for impaired assets and other items (1) 396,743 – 85,500 

Total operating costs and expenses 3,688,874 3,151,775 2,848,883 

Operating Income (87,445) 333,742 279,752 

Non-operating Expense (Income): 

Interest expense 125,057 136,831 108,955 

Interest and investment income (16,786) (25,002) (21,974)

Minority interest and other expense (income), net 5,657 (13,237 )   – 

Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes (201,373) 235,150 192,771 

Provision for income taxes (29,594) 98,354 80,073

Income from Continuing Operations before Extraordinary

Items and Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change (171,779) 136,796 112,698

Discontinued operations, net (1) 330,234 48,192 60,865

Extraordinary loss, net of income taxes (2) (3,422) – –

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of income taxes (3) – (11,161) –

Net Income $ 155,033 $ 173,827 $ 173,563

Basic Earnings Per Share:

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary

items and cumulative effect of accounting change $ (0.58) $ 0.45 $ 0.37 

Discontinued operations, net (1) 1.11 0.16 0.19

Extraordinary loss (2) (0.01) – –

Cumulative effect of accounting change (3) – (0.04) –

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 0.52 $ 0.57 $ 0.56 

Diluted Earnings Per Share: 

Income from continuing operations before extraordinary 

items and cumulative effect of accounting change $ (0.54) $ 0.45 $ 0.36 

Discontinued operations, net (1) 1.06 0.16 0.19 

Extraordinary loss (2) (0.01) – – 

Cumulative effect of accounting change (3) – (0.04) – 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 0.51 $ 0.57 $ 0.55 

(1) In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a series of actions related to the strategic review of its portfolio of businesses that
commenced earlier in the year. The outcome of this review included the sale in November 2001 of the Company’s Management Services business (with a
related pretax gain of $640 million, $384 million after-tax) as well as the decision to exit non-strategic and underperforming businesses including TruGreen
LandCare Construction and Certified Systems, Inc., as well as certain other operations. These operations are recorded in “Discontinued operations” in
all periods. In 2001, net income from discontinued operations consisted of; income from the Management Services segment ($34 million), net loss from
other discontinued operations ($7 million), and the gain on the sale of Management Services net of losses from the disposition of other entities ($303 mil-
lion). The Company also recorded a pretax charge of $397 million ($286 million, after-tax) in the fourth quarter of 2001, related primarily to goodwill and
asset impairments as well as other items.

In 1999, the Company realized a pretax gain of $50 million ($30 million after-tax) relating to the sales of its Premier automotive business and its remaining
15 percent interest in ServiceMaster Energy Management, and recorded a pretax charge of $136 million ($81 million after-tax) relating to impairment and
other items in the Diversified Health Services business. 

(2) In 2001, the Company completed a number of transactions in which it purchased a portion of its public debt securities. In addition, during the fourth quar-
ter of 2001, the Company prepaid some of its longer-term debt with some of the proceeds from the Management Services sale and incurred fees related to
“make-whole” provisions on the debt repaid. The net impact of these transactions was a net extraordinary loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $3.4
million ($5.8 million pretax).

(3) In 2000, the Company changed its method of accounting for revenue from its termite baiting contracts. The cumulative effect of this accounting change as
of January 1, 2000, was $11.1 million, ($18.9 million pretax). The impact of adopting the new accounting method compared to the previous methodology was
not material in 2000. The pro forma impact in 1999 of this change was to reduce diluted earnings per share by $0.02.

(4) Basic earnings per share is calculated based on 298,659 shares in 2001, 302,487 shares in 2000, and 307,637 shares in 1999, while diluted earnings per
share is calculated based on 311,408 shares in 2001, 305,518 shares in 2000 and 314,406 shares in 1999. In 2001, the calculation of diluted earnings per
share includes the impact of convertible securities. See the “Earnings Per Share” section in the footnotes to the consolidated financial statements for the
impact of the convertible securities to the diluted earnings per share calculation.

See accompanying Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Statements of Financial Position
(In thousands)

As of December 31,  2001 2000 

Assets: 

Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 421,550 $ 57,948 

Marketable securities 61,561 56,531 

Receivables, less allowance of $ 27,951 in 2001 and $30,031 in 2000 366,284 368,822 

Inventories 71,336 69,935 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 169,327 140,334 

Deferred taxes and tax receivables 60,600 82,540 

Total current assets 1,150,658 776,110 

Property and equipment, at cost: 

Land and buildings 41,059 38,027 

Equipment and other 432,592 439,100 

473,651 477,127 

Less: accumulated depreciation 284,679 266,636 

Net property, plant, and equipment 188,972 210,491 

Other Assets:

Intangible assets, primarily trade names and goodwill, net of accumulated 

amortization of $441,130 in 2001 and $395,321 in 2000 2,167,723 2,360,394 

Assets of discontinued operations 33,398 500,517 

Notes receivable, long-term securities, and other assets 133,988 132,322 

Total Assets $ 3,674,739 $ 3,979,834 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:   

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable   $  123,800 $  128,442 

Accrued liabilities:   

Payroll and related expenses 83,973 79,444 

Insurance and related expenses 40,019 19,002 

Income taxes payable 24,243 1,235 

Other 133,291 89,518 

Deferred revenues 373,916 298,425 

Current portion of long-term debt 35,159 61,360 

Total current liabilities    814,401 677,426 

Long-Term Debt 1,105,518 1,756,757 

Long-Term Liabilities: 

Deferred tax liability  263,000 127,350 

Liabilities from discontinued operations 75,159 189,505 

Other long-term obligations 93,023 61,275 

Total long-term liabilities 431,182 378,130 

Minority Interest 102,677 5,933 

Commitments and Contingencies (see Notes)   

Shareholders' Equity:

Common Stock $0.01 par value, authorized 1 billion shares; issued and

outstanding of 300,531 shares in 2001 and 298,474 shares in 2000 3,005 2,985 

Additional paid-in capital 1,037,969 1,030,399 

Retained earnings 337,232 301,207 

Accumulated other comprehensive income (1,888) (2,832)

Restricted stock (1,285) (1,829)

Treasury stock (154,072) (168,342)

Total shareholders' equity 1,220,961 1,161,588 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity   $ 3,674,739 $ 3,979,834 

See accompanying Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 
(In thousands)

Additional Accumulated
Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury Restricted

Stock Capital Earnings Income Stock Stock Total Equity

Balance, December 31, 1998 $ 2,980 $ 788,124 $179,840 $ 3,911 $ (14,986) $ (3,383) $ 956,486

Net Income 1999 173,563 173,563 

Other comprehensive income, 

net of tax: 

Unrealized gains on securities, 

net of reclassification adjustment (3,730) (3,730)

Foreign currency translation 

($1,424 tax expense) (2,002) (2,002)

Total comprehensive income 173,563 (5,732) 167,831 

Shareholder dividends (111,702) (111,702)

Shares issued under options, 

debentures, grant plans and 

other (1,979 shares) 20 5,076 13,630 806 19,532 

Treasury shares purchased and 

related costs (7,049 shares) (70) (92,976) (93,046)

Shares issued for acquisitions 

(14,570 shares) 145 240,368 26,102 266,615 

Balance, December 31, 1999 $ 3,075 $1,033,568 $ 241,701 $ (1,821) $ (68,230) $ (2,577) $ 1,205,716 

Net Income 2000 173,827 173,827 

Other comprehensive income, 

net of tax: 

Unrealized gains on securities, 

net of reclassification adjustment 2,845 2,845 

Foreign currency translation 

($2,741 tax expense) (3,856) (3,856)

Total comprehensive income 173,827 (1,011) 172,816 

Shareholder dividends (114,321) (114,321)

Shares issued under options, 

debentures, grant plans and 

other (2,099 shares) 21 (1,655) 18,866 748 17,980 

Treasury shares purchased and

related costs (12,637 shares) (126) (135,507) (135,633)

Shares issued for acquisitions 

(1,482 shares) 15 (1,514 ) 16,529 15,030 

Balance, December 31, 2000 $ 2,985 $1,030,399 $ 301,207 $ (2,832) $ (168,342) $ (1,829) $ 1,161,588 

Net Income 2001 155,033 155,033 

Other comprehensive income, 

net of tax: 

Unrealized gains on securities, 

net of reclassification adjustment (5,617) (5,617)

Foreign currency translation 

($4,579 tax expense) 6,561 6,561 

Total comprehensive income 155,033 944 155,977 

Shareholder dividends (119,008) (119,008)

Shares issued under options, 

debentures, grant plans and 

other (2,142 shares) 21 7,570 15,577 544 23,712 

Treasury shares purchased and 

related costs (124 shares) (1) (1,307) (1,308)

Balance, December 31, 2001 $ 3,005 $1,037,969 $ 337,232 $ (1,888 ) $ (154,072 ) $ (1,285 ) $ 1,220,961

Disclosure of reclassification amounts (net of tax) relating to comprehensive income:
2001 2000 1999 

Unrealized holding gains arising in period $ 920 $ 12,100 $ 555 
Less: gains realized (6,537) (9,255) (4,285)

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities $ (5,617) $ 2,845 $ (3,730)

See accompanying Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows 
(In thousands)

For years ended December 31, 2001 2000 1999 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at January 1 $ 57,948 $ 62,022 $ 69,535 

Cash Flows from Operations: 

Net Income 155,033 173,827 173,563 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operations: 

Income from discontinued operations (330,234) (48,192) (60,865)

Charge for impaired assets and other items, net of tax 285,540 – 50,958 

Extraordinary loss 3,422 – – 

Cumulative effect of accounting change – 11,161 – 

Depreciation expense 55,161 55,620 44,844 

Amortization expense 71,776 67,566 59,218 

Deferred 1998 tax payment – – (78,500)

Tax refund from prior years payments 51,000 39,000 – 

Deferred income tax expense 38,667 49,616 54,842 

Change in working capital, net of acquisitions: 

Receivables 5,169 (5,521) (47,144)

Inventories and other current assets (29,507) (3,051 ) (30,249)

Accounts payable (7,472) (12,927) 248 

Deferred revenues 39,688 16,018 27,204 

Accrued liabilities 23,880 (27,435) (19,842)

Other, net 1,237 (1,967) 144 

Net Cash Provided from Operations 363,360 313,715 174,421 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 

Property additions (40,380) (57,028) (56,250)

Sale of equipment and other assets 10,253 14,233 7,819 

Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (58,268) (152,306) (510,512)

Proceeds from business sales and minority interests 7,713 44,784 2,868 

Notes receivable, financial investments and securities (14,566) (20,853) (31,831)

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (95,248) (171,170) (587,906)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities: 

Net borrowings (payments) (724,184) 4,546 474,580 

Shareholders’ dividends (119,008) (114,321) (111,702)

Purchase of ServiceMaster stock (1,308) (135,633) (93,046)

Other, net 13,428 12,769 19,260 

Net Cash Provided from (Used for) Financing Activities (831,072) (232,639) 289,092 

Cash Flows from Discontinued Operations: 

Proceeds from sale of Management Services 775,779 – – 

Proceeds from sale of European businesses 90,387 – –

Cash from discontinued operations 60,396 86,020 116,880 

Net Cash Provided from Discontinued Operations 926,562 86,020 116,880 

Cash Increase (Decrease) During the Year 363,602 (4,074) (7,513) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at December 31 $ 421,550 $ 57,948 $ 62,022 

See accompanying Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Business Segment Reporting

The business of the Company is primarily conducted
through three operating segments: TruGreen, Terminix, and
Home Maintenance and Improvement. In accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131 (SFAS
131), the Company’s reportable segments are strategic busi-
ness units that offer different services. The TruGreen segment
provides residential and commercial lawn care and landscap-
ing services through TruGreen ChemLawn and TruGreen
LandCare companies. As a result of the decision to exit the
LandCare Construction business, the results of this operation
are now included in discontinued operations. The Terminix
segment provides termite and pest control services to resi-
dential and commercial U.S. customers. The Home Mainte-
nance and Improvement segment includes American
Residential Services, (ARS) and American Mechanical Ser-
vices (AMS) that provide heating, ventilation, air conditioning
(HVAC) and plumbing services as well as American Home
Shield which provides home warranties to consumers that
covers HVAC, plumbing and other appliances. The segment
also includes the two franchise operations, ServiceMaster
Clean and Merry Maids, which provide disaster restoration
and cleaning services.

The Other Operations segment includes entities that are man-
aged separately from the three major units and aggregated
together in accordance with SFAS 131 due to their size or
developmental nature. This segment includes ServiceMaster
Home Service Center (formerly WeServeHomes.com), an initia-
tive that has developed valuable marketing, call center and
technology competencies and has built an infrastructure that
allows customers the ability to purchase all of the Company’s
services through a single point of contact; the Company’s inter-
national operations which include the retained Terminix opera-
tions in the United Kingdom and Ireland; the Company’s
headquarters operations; and certain operations that the Com-
pany divested prior to 2001. 

Information regarding the accounting policies used by the
Company is described in the Summary of Significant Account-
ing Policies. The Company derives substantially all of its rev-
enues from customers in the United States with less than
three percent generated in foreign markets. Operating
expenses of the business units consist primarily of direct costs. 

Identifiable assets are those used in carrying out the oper-
ations of the business unit and include intangible assets
directly related to its operations. 

(In thousands) 2001 % Change 2000 % Change 1999 

Operating Revenue:  
TruGreen $ 1,374,382 0% $ 1,371,002 12% $ 1,219,732 
Terminix 839,163 16 725,083 9 666,076 
Home Maintenance and Improvement 1,312,578 8 1,211,674 34 903,970 
Other Operations 75,306 (58) 177,758 (48) 338,857 

Total Operating Revenue $ 3,601,429 3% $ 3,485,517 11% $ 3,128,635 

Operating Income:    

TruGreen $ 143,306 (14%) $ 165,697 (22%) $ 212,736 
Terminix 104,061 22 85,407 18 72,104 
Home Maintenance and Improvement 112,415 6 105,588 19 88,393 
Other Operations (447,227) N/A (22,950) N/A (93,481)
Other Operations,

excluding non-recurring items (1) (50,484) N/A (22,950) N/A (7,981)

Total Operating Income $ (87,445) N/A $ 333,742 19% $ 279,752 

Total Operating Income,
excluding non-recurring items (1) $ 309,298 (7%) $ 333,742 (9%) $ 365,252 

Capital Employed: 
TruGreen $ 1,036,392 (6%) $ 1,104,551 8% $ 1,027,201 
Terminix 603,903 15 526,440 1 519,740 
Home Maintenance and Improvement 672,207 6 636,019 7 592,718 
Other and Discontinued Operations 151,813 N/A 718,628 (14) 838,289 

Total Capital Employed $ 2,464,315 (17%) $ 2,985,638 0% $ 2,977,948 

Identifiable Assets:
TruGreen $ 1,088,345 (9%) $ 1,199,626 3% $ 1,161,050 
Terminix 832,916 20 695,358 6 654,577 
Home Maintenance and Improvement 1,054,101 7 983,145 9 904,826 
Other and Discontinued Operations 699,377 N/A 1,101,705 (4) 1,149,762 

Total Identifiable Assets $ 3,674,739 (8%) $ 3,979,834 3% $ 3,870,215 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense:
TruGreen $  53,089 2% $  52,187 33% $ 39,246 
Terminix 30,390 8 28,135 5 26,856 
Home Maintenance and Improvement 30,246 5 28,902 27 22,814 
Other Operations 13,212 (5) 13,962 (8) 15,146 

Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense $ 126,937 3% $ 123,186 18% $ 104,062 

Capital Expenditures:  
TruGreen $   4,679 (80%) $  23,792 10% $  21,667 
Terminix 10,427 47 7,075 23 5,768 
Home Maintenance and Improvement 16,784 16 14,517 (7) 15,612 
Other Operations 8,490 (27) 11,644 (12) 13,203 

Total Capital Expenditures $  40,380 (29%) $  57,028 1% $ 56,250 

(1) In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a series of actions related to the strategic review of its portfolio of businesses that com-
menced earlier in the year. The outcome of this review included the sale in November 2001 of the Company’s Management Services business as well as the deci-
sion to exit non-strategic and underperforming businesses including TruGreen LandCare Construction and Certified Systems, Inc., as well as certain other
operations. These operations are reflected as “Discontinued operations” in the Statements of Income and are not included in the continuing operations informa-
tion reflected in the table above. The Company also recorded a pretax charge of $397 million in the fourth quarter of 2001, related primarily to goodwill and asset
impairments as well as other items. In 1999, the Other Operations segment included the $50 million pretax gain related to the sales of the Premier automotive busi-
ness and the Company’s remaining 15 percent interest in ServiceMaster Energy Management, and the $136 million pretax charge related to the Diversified Health
Services operation, which included write-downs for the impairment of assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

Portfolio Review and Strategic Actions

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company’s Board of Direc-
tors, at their October 3, 2001 meeting, approved a series of
strategic actions which were the culmination of an extensive
portfolio review process that was initiated in the first quarter.
These strategic actions included the sale of the Company’s
Management Services business and the exit of non-strategic
and underperforming businesses including TruGreen Land-
Care Construction and Certified Systems Inc., as well as cer-
tain other small operations. The goal of the portfolio review
was to increase shareholder value by creating a focused and
aligned company that provides the greatest return and growth
potential. The Company determined it could best achieve
these goals with a portfolio of businesses which support the
business strategy to become America’s Home Service Com-
pany and have attractive cash flow and return characteristics.
In addition, the Company believed it was critical to strengthen
its balance sheet through the reduction of debt, thereby
providing it with financial flexibility to invest in future growth
opportunities. 

Discontinued Operations

On October 3, 2001 the Company’s Board of Directors
approved an agreement to sell the Management Services
business to ARAMARK Corporation (ARAMARK) for approxi-
mately $800 million. The Management Services business pro-
vided a variety of supportive management services to
institutional healthcare, education, and commercial facilities.
The all-cash transaction closed on November 30, 2001 and
the Company recorded an after-tax accounting gain of $384
million, or $1.23 per diluted share from this sale. As part of the
sale of Management Services, the Company also agreed to
sell to ARAMARK its headquarters facilities located in Down-
ers Grove, Illinois and agreed to allow ARAMARK to use the
ServiceMaster name for a period of time in related markets.
Deferred royalty income was recorded upon the sale of this
business and provisions for legal claims, severance and other
smaller items were established for the remaining Company
obligations. From the proceeds of this transaction, the Com-
pany has remaining approximately $7 million of after-tax cash
payments which are expected to be made in 2002 along with
$70 million of taxes resulting from the sale of this business.

On October 3, 2001 the Company’s Board of Directors also
approved the exit of non-strategic and underperforming busi-
nesses including TruGreen LandCare Construction and Certi-
fied Systems Inc. (the Company’s professional employer
organization), as well as certain other small operations. The
Company sold its TruGreen LandCare Construction opera-
tions to Environmental Industries, Inc. (EII) in certain markets
and entered into an agreement with EII to manage the backlog
of commercial landscaping construction contracts in the
remaining markets. The Company expects the wind-down of
the contract backlog to be completed by mid-year 2002. In
connection with the exit of the TruGreen LandCare Construc-
tion business, certain assets including accounts receivable
and fixed assets were written down to their net realizable value
and provisions were recorded for transaction fees, severance,
increased health and workers’ compensation insurance costs,
and lease termination costs. In addition, due to revised cost
estimates, the Company also recorded an adjustment relating
to its construction contracts that were accounted for under the
percentage of completion methodology. With the decision to
exit the business, management expects that it will have less
leverage with customers in collecting outstanding receivables,
and the write-down of accounts receivable reflects this esti-
mated reduced collectibility. The provision for increased health
and workers’ compensation insurance costs is in addition to
the provisions recorded prior to the decision to exit the busi-
ness. This additional provision reflects the increased insurance
claim activity expected as a result of exiting the business. 
The total impact of the aforementioned items was $62 million, 

pretax ($37 million, after-tax) and was included in the loss
recorded on the disposition of the TruGreen LandCare Con-
struction operations.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company sold all of the cus-
tomer contracts of Certified Systems Inc. (CSI) to AMS Staff
Leasing, N.A., Inc. The Company expects to complete the
wind-down of CSI’s remaining operations by mid-year 2002.
The Company recorded a loss on disposition of the CSI busi-
ness of $64 million, pretax ($40 million, after-tax), which includ-
ed the charge for impaired goodwill ($46 million pretax),
provisions for legal claims, transaction fees, severance, and
increased health and workers’ compensation insurance costs.
The provision for increased health and workers’ compensation
insurance costs is in addition to the adequate provisions
recorded prior to the decision to exit the business. 

As of December 31, 2001, there remains approximately $38
million of after-tax payments to be made related to Landcare
Construction and CSI, which should be offset by approxi-
mately $20 million of after-tax cash collections from the
remaining assets.

On October 30, 2001, the Company closed the sale of certain
subsidiaries of its European pest control and property services
operations for $101 million.The consideration consisted of
$94 million of cash and the transfer of certain liabilities to the
acquirer and $7 million in seller financing. The net impact of
this transaction was not material to the consolidated state-
ments of income. The Company continues to provide pest
control services in the United Kingdom and Ireland.

Reported “Discontinued operations” include the operating
results of the sold and discontinued businesses noted above
as well as the gain from the sale of Management Services,
net of losses from the disposition of other entities. The oper-
ating results and financial position of discontinued operations
are as follows:
(In thousands,except per share data) 

Operating Results: 2001 2000 1999 

Operating revenue $ 2,209,134 $ 2,485,098 $ 2,574,900 
Income from

discontinued
operations before
income taxes 46,066 83,157 103,422

Provision for income taxes 19,429 34,965 42,557

Income from
discontinued operations 26,637 48,192 60,865

Gain on sale of
Management Services,
net of losses from 
disposition of other
entities (net of taxes of 
$204,996) 303,597 – –

Income from
discontinued
operations $ 330,234 $ 48,192 $ 60,865

Diluted income
per share from
discontinued
operations $ 1.06 $ 0.16 $ 0.19

Financial Position: 2001 2000

Current assets $ 27,880 $223,130

Property, plant and equipment 4,232 95,493

Long-term assets 1,286 181,894

Total assets $ 33,398 $500,517

Current liabilities $ 62,071 $150,055

Long-term liabilities 13,088 39,450

Total liabilities $ 75,159 $189,505
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont.)

Charge for Impaired Assets and Other Items

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded
a pretax charge for asset impairments and other items total-
ing $397 million. The table below details the components of
the charge:

Write-down Accrual

of Assets to Net for Cash Total

(In thousands) Realizable Value Payments Charge

Goodwill $ 350,000 – $ 350,000

Residual value 

guarantees – 17,000 17,000

Severance 

arrangements 

for former executives 

and terminated 

employees – 15,000 15,000

Transaction fees    – 3,000 3,000

Asset impairments   7,000 –  7,000

Other items  –  5,000  5,000

Total Charge $ 357,000 $ 40,000 $ 397,000

2001 Cash Payments $ 4,000

Goodwill and other asset impairments reflect the write-
down of certain long-lived assets. The Company’s policy for
assessing enterprise-level goodwill impairment utilizes a dis-
counted cash flow methodology. Upon the Company’s deci-
sion to exit the TruGreen LandCare Construction business,
the Company assessed the future expected cash flows of the
TruGreen LandCare operations to determine whether the
goodwil l of TruGreen LandCare had become impaired.
As a result of this assessment, the Company recorded an
impairment charge of $300 million related to the goodwill of
the TruGreen LandCare business. A similar assessment was
performed with respect to the remaining European pest control
businesses, and a goodwill impairment charge of $50 million
was recorded related to these operations. The Company has
reviewed the impairment provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” and, based on this assessment, the Company does not
expect any further impairment charges upon adoption of this
statement in 2002.

On October 3, 2001 the Company’s Board of Directors
approved the sale of the Company’s ownership interest in five
assisted living facilities, as well as the building that served as
the headquarters for managing the assisted living facilities.
These properties were financed through a synthetic lease
arrangement, whereby the Company has guaranteed the
residual value of the properties. With the decision to sell the
facilities, in the fourth quarter of 2001 the Company received
bids for the sale of the assisted living facilities and market-val-
ue appraisals for the headquarters building. Included in the
charge is a provision for the residual value guarantee that is in
excess of the market value of the properties. 

The severance costs included in the charge primarily relate
to several senior employees that were terminated in the
fourth quarter of 2001. Two of the senior executives have
longer-term arrangements and the amounts owed to these
individuals were accrued as they will have substantially
reduced involvement with the Company.

Prior Year Dispositions and Charges

In September 2000, the Company completed the sales of
two non-core business. The Company’s interior plant care
business was sold for $44 million in cash. In addition, the Com-
pany sold its Diversified Health Services unit, a business that
manages long-term care facilities. Neither transaction had a
material impact on the Company’s operating results.

In 1999, the Company completed a strategic review and
assessment of the services that comprised the Diversified
Health Services operation, considering the industry-wide
changes in reimbursement and compliance policies as well as
the resulting financial difficulties of a number of its customers.
Based on the review of the business and the credit risks
involved, the Company substantially reduced the scope of the
services it offered. As a result of this review, the Company
recorded a pre-tax charge of $136 million ($81 million after-tax)
in the second quarter of 1999 relating to Diversified Health Ser-
vices, primarily related to goodwill and asset impairments.
Approximately $11 million (after-tax) of reserves were estab-
lished in 1999 which were appropriately used in 2000. 

In 1999, the Company sold its Premier business unit for $76
million, resulting in a pretax gain of approximately $42 million
($25 million after-tax). Premier provided cleaning services in the
automotive industry. Also in 1999, the Company sold its remain-
ing 15% interest in a strategic venture with Texas Utilities, result-
ing in a pretax gain of $8 million ($5 million after-tax).

Reincorporation

Most operations of ServiceMaster and its subsidiary part-
nerships were conducted from 1986 through 1997 in part-
nership form, free of federal corporate income tax. Had
ServiceMaster remained a partnership, the Internal Revenue
Code would have imposed a federal corporate tax on 
ServiceMaster operations beginning in 1998. In anticipation
of this change, the shareholders approved a tax-free plan of
reorganization to return to corporate form. No federal income
taxes were imposed on the shareholders. As a result of the
reincorporation at the end of 1997, the Company recognized
a step-up in the tax basis of its intangible assets. These
assets are amortized over 15 years with the associated book
assets assuming a 40 year life

Income Taxes

The reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S. fed-
eral statutory tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax
rate for continuing operations is as follows: 

2001 2000 1999

Tax at U.S. 

federal statutory rate (35.0%) 35.0% 35.0% 

State and local 

income taxes, 

net of U.S. 

federal benefit (0.9%) 4.0% 4.0%

Impairment of 

non-deductible 

goodwill 19.1% – – 

Non-deductible 

amortization 

expense 1.6% 1.4% 1.4% 

Other 0.5% 1.4% 1.1%

Effective rate (14.7%) 41.8% 41.5%

The effective tax rate for discontinued operations was
40.5%, 42.0%, and 41.1% for 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively. The difference between these rates and the federal
statutory tax rate of 35% reflects state taxes, net of federal
benefit, and permanent items, primarily amortization expense.
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Income tax expense from continuing operations is as follows:
(In thousands) 2001

Current Deferred Total

U.S. federal $ 25,045 $ (51,878) $ (26,833)
State and local 6,459 (9,220) (2,761)

$ 31,054 $ (61,098) $ (29,594)

2000

Current Deferred Total

U.S. federal $ 22,356 $ 62,368 $ 84,724
State and local 2,863 10,767 13,630

$ 25,219 $ 73,135 $ 98,354

1999

Current Deferred Total

U.S. federal $ 29,857 $ 39,853 $ 69,710
State and local 3,425 6,938 10,363

$ 33,282 $ 46,791 $ 80,073

Deferred income tax expense results from timing differences
in the recognition of income and expense for income tax and
financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax balances
reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
and income tax purposes. Management believes that, based
upon its lengthy and consistent history of profitable operations,
it is probable that its deferred tax assets will be realized on
future tax returns, primarily from the generation of future tax-
able income. Significant components of the Company’s
deferred tax balances are as follows:

(In thousands) 2001 2000 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities): 
Current: 

Prepaid expenses and other $ (23,200) $ (21,500)
Accounts receivable allowance 12,550 15,100
Accrued insurance and 

related expenses 11,750 7,600
Other accrued expenses 54,100 26,350

Total current asset 55,200 27,550

Long-Term: 
Long-term assets (1) (274,100) (130,800)
Insurance expenses 26,700 20,400
Other long-term obligations (15,600) (16,950)

Total long term liability (263,000) (127,350)

Net deferred tax liability $(207,800) $ (99,800)
(1) The deferred tax liability relates primarily to the difference in the tax versus

book basis of intangible assets. This liability does not represent expected
future cash payments until a business unit of the Company is sold.

The Company received a $1 million net tax refund in 2001.
Total tax payments in 2000 and 1999 net of refunds, were
$38 million and $177 million, respectively. The 1999 tax pay-
ments included $79 million for 1998 federal taxes that were
deferred into 1999.

The increase in the current deferred tax asset reflects the
impact of the expected future tax deductions related to the
cash charges recorded in the fourth quarter of 2001. The
increase in the long-term deferred tax liability primarily
reflects the sale of Management Services. The tax basis of
this business exceeded its book basis and the related
deferred tax asset was eliminated with the sale of the busi-
ness. The deferred tax liability reflects the basis differences
primarily related to intangible assets. In 2002, the Company is
required to adopt SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”, which eliminates the requirement to record goodwill
amortization expense in the financial statements. The majority
of the Company’s goodwill amortization expense is deductible
for tax purposes, providing the Company an annual tax benefit
of approximately $50 mill ion for the next ten years and
diminishing thereafter. This annual tax benefit is reflected
in the Statements of Financial Position as an increase in the 

deferred tax liability. In the Statements of Cash Flows, the
adoption of SFAS 142 (and the related elimination of amorti-
zation expense for financial statement purposes) will result in
a reclassification of approximately $20 million into the deferred
tax expense line as the tax deduction from amortization will
be eliminated from the income statement.

Acquisitions 

Acquisitions have been accounted for using the purchase
method and, accordingly, the results of operations of the
acquired businesses have been included in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements since their dates of acqui-
sition. The assets and liabilities of these businesses were
recorded in the financial statements at their estimated fair
market values as of the acquisition dates.

Current Year

In January 2001, the Company acquired the Allied Bruce
Terminix Companies, the Company’s largest Terminix fran-
chise and the fourth largest pest control company in the United
States. The total consideration consisted of an equity interest
in the Terminix subsidiary valued at $100 million, which is
exchangeable into eight million ServiceMaster common
shares, and longer-term cash payments due over nine years
totaling $25 million. The excess of the consideration paid over
the fair value of the tangible assets acquired was $125 million
and was recorded as enterprise goodwill.

During 2001, the Company acquired several small compa-
nies, primarily in the pest control and heating/air conditioning
and plumbing businesses. The net purchase price of these
acquisitions was $64 million. All of these companies were
acquired before June 30, 2001 (the date that SFAS 141
became effective). Approximately $59 million of enterprise
goodwill was recorded relating to these acquisitions.

In August 2001, the Company acquired certain assets of
Sears Termite and Pest Control, Inc., a company that pro-
vides pest control services and protection against termite
damage to residential customers located primarily in the
Southeast. The acquisition of the Sears Termite and Pest
Control business enhances the Company’s Terminix busi-
ness in the markets being acquired, especially in the states of
Florida, Georgia and Texas, where both Sears and Terminix
have a strong presence. The cash paid after assuming the lia-
bilities to remediate the premises owned by current cus-
tomers was not material. Approximately $54 million was
recorded as intangible assets with $6 million assigned to cus-
tomer lists and trade name usage which will be amortized
over three to seven years.

Prior Years

During 2000, the Company acquired many small compa-
nies, primarily in the lawn care, heating/air conditioning and
plumbing, pest control and landscaping businesses. The net
purchase price was $214 million, of which approximately
$162 million was recorded as enterprise goodwill.

During 1999, the Company completed two significant
acquisitions. In March 1999, the Company acquired Land-
Care USA (LandCare) which, when combined with the exist-
ing landscape operations of the Company, created the
largest commercial landscaping company in the United
States. In April 1999, the Company acquired American Resi-
dential Services (ARS), establishing the Company as one of
the nation’s leading providers of heating, ventilation, and air
conditioning services. The net purchase price in the Land-
Care and ARS acquisitions were $331 million and $292 mil-
lion, respectively. The excess of the consideration paid over
the fair value of the tangible assets relating to LandCare and
ARS businesses was $251 million and $225 million, respec-
tively, which was recorded as goodwill that is being amortized
over 40 years.
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Also during 1999, the Company acquired many smaller
companies, primarily in the landscaping, lawn care and pest
control businesses. The net purchase price for these acquisi-
tions was $315 million. The excess of the consideration paid
over the fair value of the tangible assets acquired was $278
million and was recorded as enterprise goodwill.

Supplemental cash flow information regarding the Com-
pany’s acquisitions is as follows:

(In thousands) 2001 2000 1999 

Purchase price $ 249,438 $ 253,669 $1,078,105

Less liabilities 

assumed (52,806) (40,149) (140,477) 

Net purchase price $ 196,632 $ 213,520 $ 937,628 

Net cash paid 

for acquisitions $ 58,268 $ 152,306 $ 510,512 

Shares issued – 15,030 266,615

Seller financed debt 38,364 46,184 160,501 

Minority ownership

in Terminix 100,000 – – 

Payment for 

acquisitions $ 196,632 $ 213,520 $ 937,628

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company carries insurance policies on insurable risks
which it believes to be appropriate. The Company generally
has self-insured retention limits and has obtained fully insured
layers of coverage above such self-insured retention limits.
Accruals for self insurance losses are made based on the
Company’s claims experience and actuarial assumptions.
The Company has certain liabilities with respect to existing or
potential claims, lawsuits, and other proceedings. The Com-
pany accrues for these liabilities when it is probable that
future costs will be incurred and such costs can be reason-
ably estimated.

In June 1996, Ray D. Martin, a former salesman employed by
ServiceMaster’s Management Services unit, filed a lawsuit in
Fulton County, Georgia, claiming that the Company had not
paid him the full amount of commissions due to him. In Janu-
ary, 2002 the Company announced that this case had been
settled out of court. The total compensatory damages and fees
paid by the Company in the settlement were under $1 million. 

The Company believes that other legal proceedings and
currently pending litigation arising in the ordinary course of
business will not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.

Employee Benefit Plans

Contributions to qualified profit sharing and non-qualified
deferred compensation plans were made in the amount of
$8.9 million in 2001, $9.3 million in 2000 and $8.4 million in
1999. Under the Employee Share Purchase Plan, the Compa-
ny contributed $.8 million in 2001, $.8 million in 2000 and $.7
million in 1999. These funds defrayed part of the cost of the
shares purchased by employees.

Minority Interest Ownership and Related Parties

In December 2001, the Company acquired the minority
interest in the ServiceMaster Home Service Center (SMHSC)
held by Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers. The SMHSC was
merged into a wholly-owned subsidiary of  ServiceMaster.
Pursuant to this merger, ServiceMaster purchased shares of
SMHSC owned by employees of the Company and convert-
ed options to purchase SMHSC shares into incentive options
to purchase ServiceMaster stock. A valuation opinion from a
third party firm was obtained relating to the purchase price of
the shares. Also in 2001, and in connection with the sale and
disposition of the TruGreen LandCare Construction opera-

tions, the Company repurchased the shares of TruGreen that
were previously purchased by the employees earlier in the year.
The purchase and sale prices of the shares were identical.

The Company continues to maintain minority investors in
the combined ARS/AMS entity as well as in Terminix. Members
of management acquired, at fair market value, equity interests
in ARS. The Company and the equity investors have respec-
tive options to acquire or sell the minority interests in the future
at a price based on fair market value. The future acquisition of
this minority interest will be recorded as additional purchase
cost at the time of payment. At Terminix, the minority owner-
ship reflects an interest issued to the prior owners of the Allied
Bruce Terminix Companies in connection with that acquisi-
tion. This equity security is exchangeable into eight million
ServiceMaster common shares. The ServiceMaster shares
are included in the shares used for the calculation of diluted
earnings per share.

In January 2001, Jonathan P. Ward, President and Chief
Executive Officer of ServiceMaster, purchased from Service-
Master a 5.50% convertible debenture due January 9, 2011,
with a face value of $1.1 million. ServiceMaster financed the
purchase of the debenture with a 5.50% full recourse loan
due January 9, 2011. In May 2001, Mr. Ward purchased a
second 5.50% convertible debenture due May 10, 2011, with
a face value of $1.1 million. ServiceMaster financed 50% of the
purchase price of this second debenture with a 5.50% full
recourse loan due May 10, 2011. Each debenture becomes
convertible into 20,000 shares of ServiceMaster common stock
on December 31 on each of the years 2001 through 2005.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt includes the following:

(In thousands) 2001 2000

Notes Payable: 

8.38%, maturing in 2001 $ – $ 10,000

10.81%, maturing in 2001-2002 – 36,700

6.65%, maturing in 2002-2004 – 70,000

8.45%, maturing in 2005 250,000 250,000 

7.40%, maturing in 2006 – 125,000

6.95%, maturing in 2007 100,000 100,000

7.88%, maturing in 2009 193,000 250,000

7.10%, maturing in 2018 149,000 149,000

7.45%, maturing in 2027 195,000 200,000

7.25%, maturing in 2038 88,150 150,000

Revolving credit facilities – 248,615

International borrowings 36,519 90,979

Other 129,008 137,823

Less current portion (35,159) (61,360)

Total long-term debt $ 1,105,518 $ 1,756,757

The Company is party to a number of debt agreements
which require it to maintain certain financial and other
covenants, including limitations on indebtedness (debt can-
not exceed 3.5 times earnings before interest, taxes, depreci-
ation, and amortization (EBITDA)) and interest coverage ratio
(EBITDA needs to exceed four times interest expense). In
addition, under certain circumstances, the agreements may
limit the Company’s ability to pay dividends and repurchase
shares of common stock. These limitations are not expected
to be a factor in the Company’s future dividend and share
repurchase plans. Failure by the Company to maintain these
covenants could result in the acceleration of the maturity of
the debt. At December 31, 2001, the Company is in compli-
ance with the covenants related to these debt agreements
and based on its operating outlook for 2002, expects to be
able to maintain compliance in the future.
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The Company does not have any debt agreements that
contain put rights or provide for acceleration of the debt as a
result of a change in credit rating. However, the Company
has a number of debt agreements which contain standard
ratings-based “pricing grids” where the interest rate payable
under the agreement changes as the Company’s credit rating
changes. While the Company does not expect a negative
change in credit ratings, the impact on interest expense
resulting from changes in credit ratings is not expected to be
material to the Company.

Since August 1997, ServiceMaster has issued $1.1 billion of
unsecured debt securities pursuant to registration state-
ments filed with Securities and Exchange Commission. As of
year-end, ServiceMaster had $550 million of senior unse-
cured debt securities and equity interests available for
issuance under an effective shelf registration statement.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company repaid prior to
maturity, its 10.81% notes maturing 2001-2002, 6.65%
notes maturing 2002-2004 and its 7.4% notes maturing in
2006. In connection with the early retirement of these notes,
the Company paid pretax “make-whole” premiums of $17
million. In addition, during 2001, the Company repurchased,
prior to maturity, approximately $123.9 million of its public
debt and recognized a pretax gain of approximately $11 million.

The Company has a committed revolving bank credit facility
for up to $490 million maturing in December 2004. The facility
can be used for general Company purposes. As of December
31, 2001, the Company had issued approximately $66 million
of letters of credit under the facility and had unused commit-
ments of approximately $424 million. At the Company’s current
credit ratings, the interest rate under the new facility is LIBOR
plus 125 to 150 basis points depending upon usage. This
bank facility replaced a $750 million bank revolving credit
facility that was due to mature in April 2002. The interest rate
payable under the new facility increased approximately 80 to
105 basis points depending upon the level of usage under the
facility compared to the interest rate under the previous facility.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company had approximately
$66 million of letters of credit issued under its bank credit
facility and approximately $93 million of surety bonds out-
standing that primarily support obligations the Company has
under insurance programs. The Company expects that the
surety bonds will be renewed annually. If the surety bonds are
not renewed, the Company expects to replace them with let-
ters of credit issued under its bank credit facility.

The Company is exposed to interest rate fluctuations on its
floating rate debt. As of year-end, the Company had approxi-
mately $37 million in floating rate borrowings. The Company has,
from time to time, entered into interest rate swap or similar
arrangements to mitigate its exposure to interest rate fluctua-
tions, and does not, as a matter of policy, enter into hedging con-
tracts for trading or speculative purposes. As of December 31,
2001, no interest rate swaps were outstanding.

Cash interest payments were $128 million in 2001, $131
million in 2000, and $97 million in 1999. Average rates paid
on the revolving credit facility were 5.0 percent in 2001, 6.6
percent in 2000, and 5.5 percent in 1999. Future scheduled
long-term debt payments are $35.2 million in 2002 (average
rate of 3.8 percent), $52.1 million in 2003 (average rate of 4.6
percent), $33.6 million in 2004 (average rate of 5.6 percent),
$262.8 million in 2005 (average rate of 8.3 percent) and $9.7
million in 2006 (average rate of 4.7 percent).

The Company leases certain property and equipment under
various operating lease arrangements. Most of the property
leases provide that the Company pay taxes, insurance and
maintenance applicable to the leased premises. As leases for
existing locations expire, the Company would normally expect
to renew the leases or substitute another location and lease.

The majority of the Company’s fleet is leased through cance-
lable operating leases. There are residual value guarantees
(ranging from 70% to 87% depending on the agreement)
on these vehicles, which historically have not resulted
in significant net payments to the lessors. There are no net
payments reflected in the future minimum lease obligation as
the leases are cancelable and there are no expected net
payments due under the guarantees. At December 31, 2001
there was approximately $260 million of residual value
relating to the Company’s fleet.

Rental expense for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $162 million,
$150 million and $129 million, respectively. Future long-term
noncancelable operating lease payments are $75.7 million in
2002, $47.6 million in 2003, $38.7 million in 2004, $30.0 million
in 2005, $25.0 million in 2006 and $55.2 million thereafter.

The Company maintains operating lease facilities with
banks totaling $95 million which provide for the acquisition
and development of properties to be leased by the Company.
The Company has guaranteed the residual value of the prop-
erties under the lease up to 82 percent of the fair market value at
the commencement of the lease. At December 31, 2001,
approximately $87.5 million was funded under these facilities. 

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a $17
million provision to accrue for guarantees relating to the
residual value of certain properties. The Company expects to
make net payments in 2002 of $17 million. The remaining
amount is not required to be paid, and therefore, has not
been included in the future payments listed above. Of the $95
million facilities, $80 million expires in October 2004 and $15
million expires in January 2008.

Cash and Marketable Securities

Cash, money market funds and certificates of deposits, with
maturities of three months or less, are included in the State-
ments of Financial Position caption “Cash and Cash Equiva-
lents.” Marketable securities are designated as available for
sale and recorded at current market value, with unrealized
gains and losses reported in a separate component of share-
holders’ equity. The Company’s investments consist primarily
of publicly-traded debt and common equity securities.

As of December 31, 2001, the aggregate market value of
the Company’s short- and long-term investments in debt and
equity securities was $116.9 million and the aggregate cost
basis was $115.4 million. 

Interest and dividend income received on cash and mar-
ketable securities was $9.7 million, $10.0 million, and $9.0
million, in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Gains and
losses on sales of investments, as determined on a specific
identification basis, are included in investment income in the
period they are realized.

Accounts Receivable Sales

At the end of the first quarter of 2001, the Company entered
into an agreement which provides for the ongoing revolving
sale of a designated pool of accounts receivable of TruGreen
and Terminix. At December 31, 2001, there were no receiv-
ables that had been sold to third parties. The Company may
sell its receivables under this agreement in the future and,
therefore, have immediate access to cash from these sales. 
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Under this agreement, the Company sells, on a revolving
basis, certain of its accounts receivable to a wholly-owned,
bankruptcy-remote subsidiary, ServiceMaster Funding
Company LLC which has entered into an agreement to transfer,
on a revolving basis, an undivided percentage ownership
interest in a pool of accounts receivable to unrelated third
party purchasers. ServiceMaster Funding Company LLC
retains an undivided percentage interest in the pool of
accounts receivable and bad debt losses for the entire pool
are allocated first to this retained interest. The agreement is a
364-day facility renewable at the option of the purchasers.

As of December 31, 2001, $1.783 billion of net accounts
receivable had been sold to ServiceMaster Funding Company
LLC. ServiceMaster Funding Company LLC in turn sold an
undivided interest to Falcon Asset Securitization Corporation
under this agreement. Approximately $1.707 billion of these
receivables have been collected. The amount of the retained
interest in the receivables was $76 million as of December 31,
2001 and is classified as accounts receivable in the Consolidat-
ed Statements of Financial Position. The above amounts include
receivables from the sold Management Services segment,
which were approximately one-third of the receivables sold.

The retained interest in the accounts receivable sold is
valued at the carrying amount of the retained accounts
receivable net of applicable loss reserves, which approxi-
mates fair value. Management monitors the change in the
outstanding retained interest and makes adjustments to its
carrying amount based on actual and projected losses.
Any changes in interest rates would only have a minimal
impact on the value of the residual interest due to the short-
term nature of the receivables.

The Company, as agent for the purchaser, retains servicing
responsibilities for the sold receivables. The fees received by
the Company for these services during the quarter and
twelve months ended December 31, 2001, were at fair market
value, therefore, no related assets or liabilities have been
recorded. The loss on the Company’s sale of receivables
totaled $3.2 million for the twelve months ended December
31, 2001 and is included in “Minority interest and other
expense (income), net” in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive Income, which encompasses net income,
unrealized gains on marketable securities, and the effect of
foreign currency translation is disclosed in the Statement of
Shareholders’ Equity. 

(In thousands) 2001 2000 1999 

Unrealized holding 
gains (losses) 
arising in period $ 1,562 $ 20,578 $ 1,026 

Tax expense 642 8,478 471

Net of tax amount $ 920 $ 12,100 $ 555 

Gains realized $ 8,080 $ 15,713 $ 7,239 
Tax expense 1,543 6,458 2,954 

Net of tax amount $ 6,537 $ 9,255 $ 4,285 

Accumulated comprehensive income included the follow-
ing components as of December 31:

(In thousands) 2001 2000  1999 

Unrealized gain 

on securities  $ 1,251 $ 6,868 $  4,023

Foreign currency 

translation  (3,139) (9,700) (5,844)

Total  $ (1,888) $ (2,832) $ (1,821)

Shareholders’ Equity 

The Company has authorized one billion shares of common
stock with a par value of $.01 and 11 million shares of pre-
ferred stock. There were no shares of preferred stock issued
or outstanding. 

The Company has an effective shelf registration statement
to issue shares of common stock in connection with future,
unidentified acquisitions. This filing allows the Company to
issue registered shares much more efficiently when acquiring
privately-held companies. The Company plans to use the
shares over time in connection with purchases of small
acquisitions. There were approximately 4.6 million shares
available for issuance at year end.

As of December 31, 2001, there were 34.4 million Company
shares available for issuance upon the exercise of employee
options outstanding and future grants. Share options are
issued at a price not less than the fair market value on the
grant date and expire within ten years of the grant date. Cer-
tain options may permit the holder to pay the option exercise
price by tendering Company shares that have been owned
by the holder without restriction for an extended period.
Share grants carry a vesting period and are restricted as to
the sale or transfer of the shares.

The Company accounts for employee share options under
Accounting Principles Board Opinion 25, as permitted under
generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, no
compensation cost has been recognized in the accompanying
financial statements related to these options. Had compensa-
tion cost for these plans been determined consistent with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (SFAS
123), which is an accounting alternative that is permitted, but
not required, pro forma net income and net income per share
would reflect the following:

(In thousands,except per share data) 2001 2000  1999

Net Income:
As reported $ 155,033 $ 173,827 $ 173,563
SFAS 123 

pro forma 147,423 165,657 166,601

Net Income Per Share:
Basic: 

As reported $ .52 $ .57 $ .56
SFAS 123 

pro forma .49 .55 .54
Diluted:

As reported $ .51 $ .57 $ .55
SFAS 123 

pro forma .49 .54 .53

The SFAS 123 pro forma net income reflects options grant-
ed in 2001, 2000 and 1999. Had awards been granted in ear-
lier years that carried similar vesting requirements as the
current options, then the pro forma compensation expense
presented would have been higher. Consequently, the pro
forma disclosure is not indicative of pro forma results which
may be expected in future years. 

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant
based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the fol-
lowing weighted-average assumptions in 2001, 2000 and
1999: risk-free interest rates of 4.8 percent, 6.1 percent and
5.4 percent, respectively; volatility rates of 31 percent, 29 per-
cent and 25 percent, respectively; distribution yields of 3.7
percent, 4.1 percent and 2.5 percent, respectively; and aver-
age expected lives of 6 to 7 years. The options granted to
employees in 2001, 2000 and 1999 have weighted-average
fair values of $2.41, $2.19, and $4.15, respectively and vest
ratably over five years. The Company has estimated the value
of these options assuming a single weighted-average
expected life for the entire award.
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Options and grant transactions during the last three years are summarized below: 

Share Price Weighted Avg. Share Price
Options Range Exercise Price Grants Range 

Total exercisable, December 31, 1998 7,269,279 $ 0.73 - 22.33 $ 7.51 – –

Total outstanding, December 31, 1998 16,912,726 $ 0.73 - 22.77 $ 10.89 962,730 $ 2.86 - 7.96 

Transactions during 1999  

Granted to employees 6,599,732 $11.50 - 21.16 $ 15.55 – –

Assumed in acquisitions 1,779,395 $ 6.48 - 45.79 $ 19.02 – –

Exercised, paid, or vested (1,355,345) $ 0.73 - 18.26 $ 7.61 (248,900) $ 2.86 - 7.96 

Terminated or resigned (435,069) $ 0.73 - 45.79 $ 19.32 – –

Total exercisable, December 31, 1999 10,006,644 $ 2.24 - 45.79 $ 10.37 – –

Total outstanding, December 31, 1999 23,501,439 $ 2.24 - 45.79 $ 12.85 713,830 $ 2.86 - 7.96 

Transactions during 2000

Granted to employees 4,326,164 $ 8.48 - 12.55 $ 9.75 – –

Exercised, paid, or vested (591,517) $ 2.24 - 14.55 $ 5.04 (231,474) $2.86 - 7.96 

Terminated or resigned (966,857) $ 2.25 - 37.61 $ 17.32 – –

Total exercisable, December 31, 2000 11,985,121 $ 2.25 - 45.79 $ 11.57 – – 

Total outstanding, December 31, 2000 26,269,229 $ 2.25 - 45.79 $ 12.43 482,356 $2.86 - 7.96 

Transactions during 2001

Granted to employees 5,184,141 $ 9.10 - 12.52 $ 10.63 – –

Exercised, paid, or vested (864,418) $ 2.25 - 11.41 $ 6.52 (171,518) $ 2.86 - 7.96 

Terminated or resigned (1,438,226) $ 2.25 - 45.79 $ 15.39 – – 

Total exercisable, December 31, 2001(1) 15,069,894 $ 2.25 - 45.79 $ 12.02 – – 

Total outstanding, December 31, 2001(1) 29,150,726 $ 2.25 - 45.79 $ 12.14 310,838 $ 2.86 - 7.96

(1) Excludes the impact from acquisition-related options with exercise prices significantly in excess of market.

Options outstanding at December 31, 2001:

Number Weighted- Number- Weighted-
Range of Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average

Exercise Prices at 12/31/01 Life Exercise Price at 12/31/01 Exercise Price 

$ 2.25 - 6.44 1,556,712 2.0 Years $ 5.91 1,556,712 $ 5.91 

7.30 - 10.78 11,725,421 5.0 Years 9.54 4,933,564 9.05 

10.92 - 15.94 9,132,249 7.0 Years 11.69 5,005,523 11.82 

16.12 - 22.33 6,481,218 7.0 Years 18.18 3,342,741 18.22 

27.20 - 45.79 255,126 5.0 Years 32.00 231,354 31.28 

$ 2.25 - 45.79 29,150,726 6.0 Years $ 12.14 15,069,894 $ 12.02

(In thousands, except per share data) 

For year ended 2001 For year ended 2000  For year ended 1999

Income Shares EPS Income Shares EPS  Income Shares EPS

Basic EPS $155,033 298,659 $ 0.52 $173,827 302,487 $ 0.57  $173,563 307,637 $ 0.56

Effect of Dilutive 

Securities, net of tax:      

Options  4,585  3,031    6,769 

Convertible 

debentures 4,773 8,164 –   –    –  – 

Diluted EPS $159,806 311,408 $ 0.51 $173,827 305,518 $ 0.57  $173,563 314,406 $ 0.55

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing income
available to common stockholders by the weighted-average
number of shares outstanding for the period. The weighted
average common shares for the diluted earnings per share
calculation includes the incremental effect related to outstanding
options whose market price is in excess of the exercise price.
Shares potentially issuable under convertible securities have
been considered outstanding for purposes of the diluted earn-
ings per share calculations. In computing diluted earnings per 

share, the after-tax interest expense related to convertible
debentures is added back to net income in the numerator, while
the diluted shares in the denominator include the shares
issuable upon conversion of the debentures.

The following chart reconciles both the numerator and the
denominator of the basic earnings per share computation to
the numerator and the denominator of the diluted earnings
per share computation.
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Percent Incr. Percent Incr.

(Unaudited, in thousands, except per share data) 2001 '01 - '00 2000 '00 - '99 1999

Operating Revenue: 

First Quarter $ 735,721 1% $ 729,050 48% $ 492,911

Second Quarter 1,030,176 4 990,758 10 902,132 

Third Quarter 997,798 3 971,465 4 932,346 

Fourth Quarter 837,734 5 794,244 (1) 801,246 

$ 3,601,429 3% $ 3,485,517 11% $ 3,128,635 

Gross Profit: 

First Quarter $ 194,793 7% $ 182,463 24% $ 146,599 

Second Quarter 333,104 5 317,360 4 304,034 

Third Quarter 308,343 3 300,013 2 294,171 

Fourth Quarter 218,982 11 196,530 (11) 220,373 

$ 1,055,222 6% $ 996,366 3% $ 965,177 

Net Income: 

First Quarter (1) $ 29,227 17% $ 24,893 (30%) $ 35,609 

Second Quarter 50,713 (24) 66,315 N/A 18,035 

Third Quarter 46,123 (9) 50,786 (24) 66,637 

Fourth Quarter 28,970 (9) 31,833 (40) 53,282 

$ 155,033 (11%) $ 173,827 0% $ 173,563 

Basic Net Income Per Share: 

First Quarter (1) $ 0.10 25% $ 0.08 (33%) $ 0.12 

Second Quarter 0.17 (23) 0.22 N/A 0.06 

Third Quarter 0.15 (12) 0.17 (19) 0.21 

Fourth Quarter 0.10 (9) 0.11 (35) 0.17

$ 0.52 (9%) $ 0.57 2% $ 0.56 

Diluted Net Income Per Share: 

First Quarter (1) $ 0.10 25% $ 0.08 (33%) $ 0.12 

Second Quarter 0.17 (19) 0.21 N/A 0.06 

Third Quarter 0.15 (12) 0.17 (19) 0.21 

Fourth Quarter 0.10 (9) 0.11 (35) 0.17 

$ 0.51 (11%) $ 0.57 4% $ 0.55 

Cash Dividends Per Share: 

First Quarter $ 0.10 11% $ 0.09 0% $ 0.09 

Second Quarter 0.10 11 0.09 0 0.09 

Third Quarter 0.10 0 0.10 11 0.09 

Fourth Quarter 0.10 0 0.10 11 0.09 

$ 0.40 5% $ 0.38 6% $ 0.36 

Price Per Share: 

First Quarter $ 12.00 - 9.95 $ 14.94 - 10.69 $ 22.00 - 17.50 

Second Quarter 12.00 - 9.84 13.75 - 10.63 20.94 - 17.31

Third Quarter 12.84 - 9.95 11.50 - 8.38 18.56 - 14.00 

Fourth Quarter 14.20 -10.06 11.50 - 8.25 16.25 - 10.13 

(1) 2000 has been restated for cumulative adjustment relating to the change in accounting for termite baiting contracts. 

Quarterly Operating Results

Quarterly operating results and related growth for the last
three years in revenues, gross profit, net income, and basic
and diluted net income per share are shown in the table
below. For interim accounting purposes, certain costs direct-
ly associated with the generation of lawn care revenues are
initially deferred and recognized as expense as the related
revenues are recognized. Full year results are not affected.  

Certain amounts from prior periods have been reclassified
to conform with the current presentation.
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Independent Public Accountants:
Arthur Andersen LLP
Chicago, Illinois

Transfer Agent:
Computershare Investor Services LLC
Chicago, Illinois
888-834-0744

Share Listing:
New York Stock Exchange
(Symbol SVM)

Internet:
www.svm.com

The annual meeting of shareholders
will be held on Friday, April 26, 2002, 
at 10:00 a.m. in our offices
at 860 Ridge Lake Boulevard in 
Memphis, Tennessee.

Any ServiceMaster shareholder may
receive, without charge, a copy of the
most recent annual report on Form 
10-K as filed with the Securities and
Exchange  Commission, by writing to
the Corporate Secretary at the 
following address:

The ServiceMaster Company
2300 Warrenville Road
Downers Grove, Illinois 60515

© 2002 The ServiceMaster Company
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the new servicemaster



277 locations

3.5 million customers, $876 million customer level revenue

Residential lawn, tree, shrub care, and lawn care products

Commercial lawn, tree, and shrub care

International services (12,000 customers, $23 million customer level revenue)

sm

110 locations

15,000 customers, $526 million customer level revenue

Landscape management, landscape installation

Water management, tree care, irrigation services, nurseries

456 locations

2.9 million customers, $960 million customer level revenue

Residential/commercial termite and pest control

International services (481,000 customers, $140 million customer level revenue)

7 locations

980,000 customers, $357 million customer level revenue

Home warranty plans

15 locations 

4,000 customers, $246 million customer level revenue

Commercial heating, ventilation and air conditioning installation, 

maintenance, and repair 

Electrical installation, maintenance and repair 

79 locations

1.6 million customers, $601 million customer level revenue

Residential/commercial plumbing, electrical, heating, ventilation, 

air conditioning maintenance, and repair services

Lawn Care and Landscape

Termite and Pest Control

Home Maintenance and Improvement

Other Operations

2,916 locations

978,000 customers, $733 million customer level revenue

Residential carpet, upholstery and window cleaning, residential/commercial disaster

restoration services 

Commercial carpet and hard surface floor care, janitorial services

International services (301,000 customers, $333 million customer level revenue)

805 locations

276,000 customers, $240 million customer level revenue

Home cleaning services 

International services (32,000 customers, $55 million customer level revenue)

293 locations

134,000 customers, $40 million customer level revenue

Home inspections

International services (20,000 customers, $4 million customer level revenue)

459 locations

137,000 customers, $27 million customer level revenue

Residential/commercial on-site furniture repair and restoration

International services (20,000 customers, $7 million customer level revenue)

Third party online and offline distribution channel for 

ServiceMaster brand services

www.servicemaster.com



Terminix pest-free homes



beautiful lawns TruGreen ChemLawn



Merry Maids clean orderly homes



healthy shrubs TruGreen LandCare



ARS / Rescue Rooter reliable systems



quality restoration Furniture Medic



American Home Shield insured homes



dependable systems A M S



ServiceMaster Clean back from disaster



every detail AmeriSpec



ServiceMaster Home Service Center answers 24-7



Finally, brethren, whatever is true, whatever is honorable, whatever

is right, whatever is pure, whatever is lovely, whatever is of good

repute, if there is any excellence and if anything worthy of praise, let

your mind dwell on these things. Philippians 4:8

Our Objectives

To honor God in all we do
To help people develop
To pursue excellence
To grow profitably

servicemaster 
The ServiceMaster Company
2300 Warrenville Road
Downers Grove, Illinois 60515
630-271-1300
www.svm.com


